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Sacranento, California;, Wednesday, Septenber 21, 2022
2:15 p. m
-- 000 --

JUDGE HOSEY: W are opening the record in the
Appeal of MacLeod. This nmatter is being held before the
O fice of Tax Appeals, Case Nunber 18093762. Today is
Sept enmber 21, 2022, and it's 2:15 p.m W're here in
Sacranment o, California.

| amthe Lead Adm nistrative Law Judge, Sara
Hosey. And with ne today are Judge Vassi gh and Judge Le.
Al three Judges will neet after the hearing and produce a
written decision as equal participants.

Al t hough the Lead Judge wi Il conduct the hearing,
any Judge on this panel may ask questions or otherw se
participate to ensure that we have all the information
needed to decide this appeal.

Can | please have the parties state their nanes
for the record.

M. Hamersley?

MR. HAMERSLEY: M chael Hanersley for the
Appel | ant .

MR IMMORDING: G ro Immordino for the Franchise
Tax Boar d.

M5. MOSNI ER  Marguerite Mosnier for the

Franchi se Tax Board.

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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JUDGE HOSEY: Thank you.

The issues we have in front of us today are
whet her Appel l ants made an | RC Section 170 bargain sal e of
the Pal m Springs | and; who has the burden of proof on this
i ssue; did Appellants have gain under | RC Section 731; if
so, was there a conputational error; and who has the
burden of proof on this issue; whether under the doctrine
of res judicata and other concerns such as conformty and
di scl osure, cause -- bar FTB' s proposed California tax
defici enci es; whether Appellants have shown interest
shoul d be abated pursuant to R&TC Section 1914; have
Appel | ants shown reasonabl e cause to abate the late filing
tax return penalty for the 2006 tax year.

These issues were set forth in the prehearing
conference mnutes and orders issued on Septenber 26,
2022.

M. Hanersley, do those sound accurate?

MR. HAMERSLEY: Yes. Wth -- with exception to
the res judicata conplexity --

JUDCGE HOSEY: Can you get a little closer to your
m cr ophone?

MR. HAMERSLEY: Yes. Wth the -- with the
exception to the res judicata conplexity that | made
earlier.

JUDGE HOSEY: Right. Regarding res judicata,

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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conformty, and disclosure issues.

MR. HAMERSLEY: Yes.

JUDCGE HOSEY: Okay. M. Imordino, is that
accur at e?

MR. | MMORDI NO. Yes. Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: Thank you.

For exhibits, we admtted Exhibits 1 through 22,
for Appellant, and A through DD, for Franchi se Tax Board,
into the record via the prehearing conference m nutes and
orders issued on Septenber 6, 2022.

(Appel lants' Exhibit Nos. 1-22 were previously

received in evidence by the Adm nistrative Law

Judge.)

(Departnent's Exhibit Nos. A-DD were previously

received in evidence by the Adm nistrative Law

Judge.)

JUDGE HOSEY: M. Hanersley, you submtted 23
t hrough 30 on behal f of Appell ants.

M. I mordi no, do you have any objection to these
docunent s?

MR. | MMORDINO. No. Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: kay. Exhibits 23 through 30 are
now admtted as evidence into the record.

(Appel l ants' Exhibit Nos. 23-30 were received in

evi dence by the Adm nistrative Law Judge.)

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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JUDGE HOSEY: M. I mmordi no, you have submtted
Exhi bits EE and FF on behal f of the Respondent, Franchise
Tax Board.

M. Hanersl ey, do you have any objections to
t hese two docunents?

MR. HAMERSLEY: Just the ones | registered
previ ously.

JUDGE HOSEY: Yes. M. Hanersley was concerned
about new information this late in the hearing process.

However, both Exhibits EE, the FTB Returns
Recei ved Display Printout for tax year 2006, and FF, |IRS
Account Transcript for Appellants for tax year 2006, have
information in themthat is in the record to date. So |'m
going to all ow these docunents -- overrule the objection.

But we will consider all objections when wei ghi ng
t he evi dence and nmaki ng our decision pursuant to
Regul ati on 30124(f) (4).

So that being said, Exhibits EE and FF are now
admtted as evidence into the record.

(Departnent's Exhibit Nos. EE-FF were received in

evi dence by the Administrative Law Judge.)

JUDGE HOSEY: Al right. M. Hanersley, are you
ready for your opening statenent?

MR HAMERSLEY: Yes, | am Judge.

JUDGE HOSEY: You have 20 mnutes. Any tine you

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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do not use, we will hold over. Go ahead and begin.

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR. HAMERSLEY: So | -- before | get into the --
t he substantive issues, on this issues of the wei ghing of
the evidence, 1'd like to point out that in weighing the
evi dence, even though the -- the OTA does not adopt the
Evi dence Code, Section 412 of the Evidence Code discusses
t he wei ghing of evidence with respect to weak -- weak
evi dence.

So |I'm speaking with respect to exhibits |ike
they're [sic] just submtted -- |like the Exhibits AA and
DD that were past docunents -- that were all, rather
than -- than provide all of themas requested in a
producti on request and the subpoena request -- that
they're -- they're -- they feel confortable, you know, in
the protection of the order, they don't have to.

But what you do when you get that is the -- the
Cookston presunption -- I'msure you're famliar with --
you cite it often -- but also this Evidence Code 412.

When you don't turn over -- and if you look in
Exhibits AA and DD in the | RS communi cations and on, you
know, the other past folders and things referenced in
there -- and Judge Hosey, | know you worked at FTB.

You're famliar with the past system There's lots of

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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di fferent folders and docunents and stuff.

We asked for those. Al we got were exhibits
attached to their briefs. W got no production on the
request .

So here's what Section 412 says wth respect to
the weight of it -- to be given to evidence, quote, "If
weaker and | ess satisfactory evidence is offered, when it
was within the power of the party --"

(Reporter adnonition)

MR HAMERSLEY: Yes.

They have the sol e possession of the past
docunents and the | RS conmuni cati ons.

"If weaker and | ess satisfactory evidence is
offered, when it was within the power of a party to
produce stronger and nore satisfactory evidence, the
evi dence offered should be viewed wth distrust."

Appeal of Don A. Cookston, cited often by the
OTA, it is well established -- quote, "It is well
established that the failure of a party to introduce
evi dence, which is within his or her control, gives rise
to the presunption that, if provided, it would be
unf avor abl e.

So that's -- that's the rest of the bargain they
bought when they -- when they didn't turn over those

document s.
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They're -- they're docunents -- and |I'll point
out with respect to the -- they're not authenticated, and
they're not conplete in many cases.

ROB Exhibit X is a perfect exanple. ROB Exhibit
X was whited out, not redacted in black, as I'll point out
later. The line itemthat nmade their point in the brief
67 -- purportedly paid 67 percent of the deficiency was
di sall owed to the I RS

It was 8.3 percent. They made that point. They
cited Exhibit X, whited out the bottomand the top and the
line-itemdescription of the 33 percent where they got
their 67.

|'ve never seen such a thing. That evidence is
conpletely unreliable.

Exhibit Y, attached to their RRB -- their --
their reply brief -- page 19 to 40 is that docunment. And
you can conpare the two. They whited out the sections
that -- that contradicted the argunent they were making in
their Respondent's Qpening Brief citing Exhibit X

So the weight given to their docunentary evidence
shoul d be zero. It's not reliable.

And as | said, the exhibits that shoul d be | ooked
at -- their ROB's Exhibit X, which was our 7; ROB Exhibit
Y, which is our 8 ROB s Exhibit T, referred to as the

"“snoki ng-gun letter" that was withheld fromus for a

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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period of five years.

That was issued on February 15, 2013. It was
cited as Exhibit Cin the IRS exam nations report. The
| RS would not give it to us. Wen we asked for it, they
said the FTB Protest Hearing O ficer requested
confidentiality. You'll have to get it fromhim

When we asked for it, we were repeatedly denied.
It was finally attached to -- parts of it -- to the
Exhibit T to the Respondent's Opening Brief. That is not
reliabl e evidence.

Al so Exhibits 25 and 26 show t he subpoena
request, the two categories of docunents, the past
docunents, and the -- and the I RS docunents, which are
referenced repeatedly, as | said, in Exhibits AA and DD of
Respondent's briefs.

Al right. Wth that said, you know, here we are

11 years -- 11 years into this -- this protest -- this
appeal -- 7 of which was in the protest -- during the
protest -- just -- just under 7 years.

If you | ook at even the Exhibits AA and DD, what
on earth were you doing for 7 years? This -- that al
goes to the -- the interest-abatenent issue.

But the transaction is actually quite sinple.
And so I'd like to explain the transaction. The lawis

quite sinple. There are only Federal |ncone Tax Code

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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Provisions -- 170 and 731 -- as Judge -- Judge Hosey said.
So the ownership structure exhibit -- the

Respondent's Reply Brief Exhibit AA has a di agram of

the -- of the ownership structure.

Basically, the Appellants owned -- | think it was
58- poi nt-sonet hi ng percent directly -- indirectly of MC
Properties. MC Property owned -- owned two part -- M
Properties was a tax partnership. They -- LLC -- was a

tax partnership.

They owned two parcels of |land that totaled
19.- -- | think it was -- -16 acres.

On or about 2003, they entered into negotiations
with the Pal m Springs Unified School District to sell that
property to them The Palm Springs Unified School
District is a 501 organi zation to the extent there's
excess value of the sale, there's a charitable
contribution deducti on.

So the -- the negotiations went on from 2003 and
did not finally close until April 28th of 2006. There was
a-- aletter that threatened condemation. And finally,
t he taxpayer caved. And that's referenced in Section 1.2
of the Purchase and Sal e Agreenent.

Two things to reference there -- that it was
under threat of condemmation and it's a 1033 transaction.

No one di sagrees about that. WelIl, 1033 is either

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
800. 231. 2682
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condemation or threat of condemati on.

And the -- the -- the sale then took place and
closed on April 28th of 2006 for $10.558 million, | think
it was.

The taxpayer w ote contenporaneously in Section
1.2 of the Purchase and Sal e Agreenent that the val ue of
the property well exceeds that $10.5 million and -- and
docunmented that and the fact -- the fact that it was under
threat of em nent donain.

The problem here on the threat of em nent domain

is the appraisals and all the IRS stuff that -- that
Respondent relies upon -- Respondent's closing letter,
before we filed the protest -- treated that transaction as

a constructive condemati on.

They said, "You didn't give your property away.
There's no domain intent. They took it fromyou."

VWell, when the IRS went and tal ked to the Pal m
Springs Unified School District after getting all of the
FTB's argunents and Exhibit T and all the docunents they
sent to them the Palm Springs Unified School District
told them the exact opposite: It never went down that
road.

Wll, hows it a 1033 transaction?

So the witness then, you know, on this was --

IS -- swtched their stories -- granted, it was a new

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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person and -- at the Palm Springs Unified School

District -- but they were very adamant that there was no
threat, despite the existence of this threat letter and
despite the fact that all the parties agree it was a 1033
transacti on.

So the -- the witnesses supplying information to
the FTB and the I RS are questionabl e.

So the bargain sale transaction took place. As |
said, it was a 1033 transacti on.

Procedural history of the case -- this case
started wth the Franchi se Tax Board. The protest got it
ri ght about the beginning of -- we filed the protest at
the end of 2011; they got it beginning of 2012.

Not |long after, there were sone | DR requests.

And then the I RS opened an audit. And the original --
noti ce of proposed adjustnment we got quoted a
t ypogr aphi cal and grammatical error fromthe FTB's APE's.

So it was clear at that point. W knew they were
sharing information. W asked -- we asked the disclosure
office; they denied it.

They got into this -- this little debate about
what a "third-party contact"” is. And we said
“third-party,"” under the statute, is anyone but the
t axpayer. The question is whether you have to disclose it

in 19504. 7.

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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Just -- they wouldn't answer the question.

And -- and as we know in Exhibit T, which was cited in the
| RS Exam nations Report, there were many conmuni cations.
It's in those Exhibits AA and DD. W now know.

Even though we didn't get the docunents, it's
absolutely clear fromthe evidence and the record -- they
were -- they were talking regularly.

And -- and in Exhibit T, the -- the |egal
analysis was witten fromthe Franchi se Tax Board to
the -- to the IRS, which adopted their argunents. And
t hen vice versa, when the Notice of -- of Assessnment was
issued fromthe IRS, the FTB adopted their argunents.

So there was a |l ot of coordination. That'll --
that'Il get to the privity issue.

So as | said, what -- what happened is, when the
| RS then issued their Notice of Deficiency, whichis a
90-day letter, that's the end of the I RS controversy.
You're -- now, you're working with I RS Appeals and their
Litigation Section.

If you want to pursue an appeal, you have to file
a Tax Court petition. That's litigation. W -- as
exhibit -- we gave you Exhibit 3 and 4 that show the
docket and show the Tax Court deci sion.

| don't know why on earth we are still calling

this an "IRS Determnation.” An IRS Determ nation i s an

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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| RS exami nations -- an |IRS audit report.

It is very clear that that is a decision of a
court of conpetent jurisdiction of the United States Tax
Court.

So I don't know why we're tal king about an I RS
Determination. W don't agree with the I RS Determ nati on.
They -- they conpletely -- the IRS Determ nation
conpl etely disall owed the deduction, which was reversed by

t he Tax Court.

So, as | said, there's only two -- two maj or code
sections here. Section 170 -- | think 12 percent of the
deficiencies attributable to that -- the bulk of it,

think 88 percent is attributable to the 731 --
specifically, Revenue Ruling 81-242 theory.

W' re being taxed on the theory based on an
article that the two attorneys -- the two attorneys from
Franchi se Tax Board that have argued the two cases they've
had on this -- wote -- and the -- the -- the article,
which is Exhibit 17, nmakes our case.

It says it's a horrible, horrible policy --

horrible rule. It should be done away with. But they
argue that, you know, because if you -- |'ll get into
that -- when you | ook at the history of that Rev. Rule, it

was originally a taxpayer-favorable ruling that GCM 38389
reversed and said that Section 1033 and 752(b) operate

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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i ndependently. The problemisn't 1033; it's 752.

Vell in 1991, regul ations were passed in
1.752-1(f) that allowed liability that it -- you got to
fix that problem

The I RS has not litigated or even addressed in
any adm ni strative controversy have they taken a position
in adm nistrative guidance that 81-242 is still a good
| aw.

And yet here we are -- 88 percent of our
deficiency is attributable to this theory. That there's a
lot -- that there's a transitory liability relief -- that,
specifically, when the replacenent property was purchased
on that Palm Springs Unified sale [sic] District to
qualify for 1033 treatnent -- that when the -- when the
l[iabilities on the sale property were paid off -- that you
cannot view the replacenent property transaction that are
bookends for nonrecognition, under 1033, as part of a
si ngl e transacti on.

And so we stopped. And if you look in the mddle
and you cut it off, you'll have a transitory relief of
liabilities that gives rise to a Section 731 gai ned --
deened distribution.

The Franchi se Tax Board freely acknow edges t hat
i f an individual had done that transaction, there'd be no

problem There's no -- this is purely a function of the

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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part nershi p.

This -- this -- this proposed issue -- if an
i ndi vidual had -- had done that exact sane transaction,
there would be no -- no -- no gain -- 731 gain.
Res judicata -- as | said, the Tax Court
determ nation letter is not -- the Tax Court April 30 of
2015 decision is not an IRS Determnation. It's a -- it's
a -- it's a decision of a court of conpetent jurisdiction.
The | -- the FTB -- well let ne back up a little
bit. There are three elenents to res judicata. It
appears -- I'mnot -- never clear what they've
acknow edged or not acknow edged -- but it seens |like

we've limted it to this privity issue.

There's three elenents to it that -- that --
the -- you have a final judgnent on the nerits. The U S
Tax Court opinion is that. It's not an I RS Determ nati on.
You -- and that -- it's the sane cause of action.

Well, the California Franchise Tax -- or the
Revenue and Taxation Code is derivative for Sections 1- --
it conforms to Sections 170 and 731. The tax for
California state tax purposes is derivative of the federal
i nconme tax.

The United States Tax Court | ooked at the exact
i ssue of what are the federal -- federal incone tax

consequences applying the Internal Revenue Code 170 and

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
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731 to that exact sane transaction for the exact sane
t axpayer for the sanme tax year

And the -- the FTB does not want to followit.

If there's no federal conformty here, and they do not
have to follow this U S Tax Court decision, federal
conformty is a conplete fiction. You'll never have a
better case than this for thembeing required to foll ow
f ed.

So on the issue of privity, the last prong -- the
privity that the -- that the -- we -- the privity |ooks at
one of the things -- one of the things it |ooks at is
mutual i ty.

There is no question that, had the Tax Court gone
differently and gone agai nst the taxpayer, that this
t axpayer woul d be barred and woul d have to pay the state
tax based on the federal tax liability -- the decision of
the U.S. Tax Court.

The FTB is playing this -- when they put it
"“pendi ng federal" and agreed to do that, they're playing
this "heads, FTB wins; tails, taxpayer |oses"” gane. And
it's -- it's -- it's a ridiculously bad policy.

So | ooking at the -- the issue of privity. This
was recently addressed establishing the -- with respect to
the final judgnent stipulated Tax Court -- stipul ated

court decision being a final judgenent on the nerits for
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res judicata purposes. There's alot -- | nean, it's well
settl ed.

But it was recently addressed in an Cctober 4th,
Ninth Grcuit opinion Frank Lane Italiane. And it --
Frank Lane Jr. and Alicia -- BAP Nunmber EC-20-1247-SGF - -
and it confirms that, while subtle -- the lawon it cites
California law -- California Autonobile Associ ation versus
Superior Court 50 Cal.3d 658, 664-665.

On the issue -- on the standard for res
judicata -- or privity, there was a June 3rd, 2022
California Suprene Court opinion, Lynn G ande versus
Ei senhower Fresh. And it, again, says here's the
est abl i shed standard:

ldentity or community of interest -- quote,
“lIdentity or community of interest" --

(Reporter adnonition)

MR. HAMERSLEY: Sure.

"The standard for privity is an identity or
community of interest such that the interest represented
in the first action reasonably should have" -- they should
reasonably expected to be bound -- the -- the party in
privity in the first act -- in the second action should
have reasonably expected to be bound in the first suit.

They cited the | ong-standing California standard
i n DKN Hol di ngs 61 Cal.4th, 826.
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So, you know, | had nentioned it's not just the
| RS comuni cations that -- that caused the FTB to be in
privity. And there are lots of them And they got --
they certainly had their chance to speak up and -- and
make their case.

They did it in Exhibit T to their opening brief,
argued their position. And then as the past docunents,
their Exhibits AA and DD, show, they had early and
often -- they had lots of communications with the |IRS.

So the -- the -- privity is established by the
fact that the Protest Hearing O ficer, who happens to be
the tax counsel here, reviewed the tax docunents provided
by the IRS and decided to put it "pending federal,"
deciding that it was the sane transaction tax year and
federal incone tax issues. That's an identity or

community of interest.

The conformty policy -- conformng to a federa
law is an identity or community of interest. |It's, in
fact -- it's derivative.

The docunents shared under the disclosure statute
and the MOA that's required to do that can only be
lawfully shared by the FTB and IRS and vice versa if there
was an identity and conmunity of interest in the subject
matter.

There's a right to know and a need to know. FTB
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had significant, as | said -- significant input and
nmeani ngful voice in the IRS matters by sending its | egal
anal ysis and regul arly communi cati ng.

So that's the part about, you know, how ruch
conmmuni cati on was there?

We'd |ike to see all of the docunents. All of
the IRS -- and we don't have anywhere near those. W were
never given -- we have what they -- what they attached to
their exhibits. That's all we have.

JUDGE HOSEY: M. Hanersley, you have about a

mnute left. Although, it seens that we're getting into

sone argunent. So you -- if FTB is confortable with
wai vi ng an opening and -- and just noving into argunents,
we are able -- you can use the 30 m nutes of argunent as
wel | .

MR. HAMERSLEY: Probably nakes sense, yeah.

JUDGE HOSEY: M. | mmordi no?

MR. I MMORDINO That's fine. Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: Okay. So you'd just be noving into

your argunents, as well, after M. Hanersley, if you --
or -- Ms. Msnier as well --
M5. MOSNIER  If -- if you wouldn't m nd, we

m ght |like just a short few mnute's opening statenents.
JUDGE HOSEY: Would you like to do that now? O

woul d you like to -- hold on. Let ne stop ny cl ock.
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Wul d you like to do that now? O would you |ike
to wait until we finish wwth M. Hanersley? He's on issue
three right now.

M5. MOSNIER: We woul d defer to the -- to the
OTA. Al though, our request would be to do it now.

MR. HAMERSLEY: That's fine.

JUDGE HOSEY: M. Hanersley, what are you
confortable wi th?

MR. HAMERSLEY: That's fine.

JUDCGE HOSEY: We'll do a short -- okay.

FTB, pl ease proceed.

MR. | MMORDI NO. Thank you. Yeah. | think it
woul d hel p to have an opening just to kind of |ay sone

f oundat i on.

JUDGE HOSEY: |I'msorry. Can you get a little
cl oser --

MR. | MMORDI NO. Ch, no. Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: Sorry. | turned ny mc off.

Can you just get a little closer so we can hear
you?

MR IMMORDING Is this better?

JUDGE HOSEY: Yes. Thank you.

MR. I MMORDI NO  Sorry about that.

JUDGE HOSEY: It's okay. Thanks.

MR. I MMORDINO | think that having an opening
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would help lay a little bit of foundation, nmake it a

[ittle bit better.

OPENI NG STATEMENT

MR, | MMORDI NO. Ckay. So thank you very nuch

| am going to discuss the Palm Springs | and and

the tax inpact of Appellants' partnership distributions.

Then ny col |l eague, Ms. Mosnier, will cover interest

abatenent, res judicata, and the late-filing penalty.

The first issue in this appeal is whether

Appel l ants nmet their burden to show that they had a

bargain sal e of | and.

In a bargain sale, the taxpayer transfers

property in a transaction that is part sale and part

charitable contribution. Like nbost cases arising out of

real estate transactions, this appeal is docunent

and the docunents show what happened.

heavy,

The Pal m Springs Unified School District was

interested in purchasing | and which was owned by

Appel | ants and others through LLC s.

The School District was also interested in

pur chasi ng the adjacent parcel of |and which was owned by

an unrelated third party.

During a | engthy negotiation, the School

and Appellants had nultiple appraisals prepared.

District
And as
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real estate prices rose during this period, so did the
val uations in the appraisals.

Appel l ants had two separate apprai sers prepare a
total of three appraisals, which had valuations starting
at $8.2 mllion and ending at $10.7 million.

Simlarly, the School District's appraisers
prepared appraisals with valuations starting at
$8.2 million and ending at $10.5 mllion.

Utimately, the parties agreed on a sales price
of $10.5 mllion. The unrelated third party also sold the
adj acent parcel of land for the sane per-acre sales price.

Duri ng negotiations, Appellants brought up the
option of a part sale, part charitable contribution. The
School District considered that approach but ultimtely
made a fair market val ue offer and even had the purchase
agreenent specifically state that the sale was nade at
fair market val ue.

Appel lants originally filed a 2006 tax return,
did not report the sale of the land as a bargain sale. It
was not until four and a half years after the sale and the
m ddl e of the audit that Appellants filed an anended t ax
return and clainmed that the value of the Iand was worth
approxi mately $20 million, which is alnpbst twice the sales
price.

To support this inflated val uation, Appellants

Kennedy Court Reporters, Inc.
800. 231. 2682

26



https://www.kennedycourtreporters.com

© 00 N oo o A~ W N

N N N N NN P B P R P PP PP
o b W N P O © 0 N O 00 A W N P O

did not use either of the two appraisers that they' d used
during the sal es negoti ati ons.

I nstead, Appellants used a new apprai ser who
prepared a valuation for tax purposes. During the IRS
exam nation, the I RS inspected the |and and al so prepared
an appr ai sal .

The I RS deternmined that the School District had
paid fair market value for the land. Further, the IRS
apprai ser rejected the Appellants inflated $20 mllion
appraisal, finding that it was inconsistent and bi ased.

To get bargain sale treatnent, two separate
requi renments nust be net: First, the Appellants nust show
the value of the land was clearly out of proportion to the
anount paid by the School D strict. Here, the evidence
wi Il show that Appellants were paid fair market val ue for
t he | and.

Second, Appellants nust show that the excess
value in the land was transferred with the intention of
making a gift. Here, the | aw does not allow there to be
intent to nmake a charitable contribution because the
Appel | ants accepted the School District's fair market
val ue offer.

Regar di ng Appel |l ants' assertions to the contrary,
the IRS summarized its discussions with the School

District as follows, and | quote: "The attorney and
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retired director stated that the taxpayer statenents on
the Form 8283 attachnent are not accurate and m srepresent
the School District's position at the tine of the

transaction,” end quote.

In addition, the courts have been especially
unw I ling to allow taxpayers to unilaterally assert a gift
occurred when they receive a fair nmarket value offer,
particularly in the background of em nent donain
proceedi ngs such as in this appeal.

As courts state, if the Appellant did not fee

the offer was fair, they had recourse through the em nent

domai n process -- an option the Appellant chose not to
pur sue.

Next, | want to discuss -- |let's see.

|"m going to discuss the -- the tax inpact of

Appel I ants' partnership distributions.

Subchapter K of the Internal Revenue Code gives
partners in a partnership significant flexibility.
However, with that flexibility, Subchapter K al so gives
limtations.

Thi s appeal deals with one of those limtations.
Specifically, the limtations surrounding a partner's
basis in a partnership.

When a partner puts sonething into a partnership

or recogni zes gain, their partnership basis increases.
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Simlarly, when a partner takes distributions out of the
partnership, their partnership basis decreases.

A partner can take distributions out of a
partnership wi thout owing any tax as |long as they have
basis to cover the distributions.

However, when a partner's distributions exceed
their basis, Subchapter K requires that they recognize
gai n.

In this appeal, Appellants received cash
distributions and the relief of partnership liabilities,
which is also treated as a cash distribution. These
di stributions exceeded the Appellants' basis in the
MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC. And so the Appellants are
required to recogni ze gain.

Regardi ng the portion of the distributions
related to the relief of partnership liabilities, there is
an I RS CGeneral Counsel Menorandumdirectly on point. The
CGeneral Counsel Menorandum or GCM anal yzes the inpact or
the relief of the partnership liabilities in IRC Section
1033 transactions such as we have in this appeal.

The GCM specifically considers the Appellant's
position, fully analyzes it, and then rejects it,
including the single transaction netting rule that
M . Hanersley nentioned was passed in '91l.

Then one year later, a revenue ruling is issued
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whi ch nenorializes the analysis and determ nation in the
GCM and which is consistent wth the FTB's position in
t hi s appeal .

Finally, there is discussion of a Tax Notes
article which proposes a |law change. This article is
witten by a tax practitioner in their personal capacity.

Further, while not authoritative, the article
reiterates that the law requires a result consistent with
the FTB's assessnent and that a | aw change woul d be
necessary for a contrary result.

And with that, I'll pass it to ny coll eague,

Ms. Mosnier. Thank you very nuch
JUDGE HOSEY: Ms. Mbsnier, you have about 13

m nut es.

FURTHER OPENI NG STATEMENT

M5. MOSNI ER° Thank you. Good afternoon.

Mar guerite Mosnier for Franchise Tax Board. And thank
you, M. | nmmordi no.

I'"d like to talk a bit about the concept of res
judicata, interest abatenent, and the Section 19131
late-filing penalty.

Res judicata is an affirmative defense. It nust
be proven -- it's offered up and proven by the Appell ants.

They nmust establish four elenents to avail thensel ves of
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t hi s def ense.

The evidence will show that the Appellants have
not established three of the four elenents necessary to
prove res judicata should govern the disposition of this
appeal. And there is no requirenent that FTB foll ow a Tax
Court judgnment with respect to tax year 2006.

And simlarly, the statutory right to interest
abat enment depends on the Appellant's having shown there
was an unreasonabl e delay by FTB in working the underlying
protest in this case. And here again, the evidence wll
show that there was no unreasonabl e delay or delay at al
by the Franchi se Tax Board.

Further, the -- the evidence wll show that any
delay that the OTA may determne is attributable to the
Appel | ant s.

And finally, with respect to the late-filing
penalty -- and this applies only to the 2006 tax year --
the record reflects a |ack of evidence to establish
reasonabl e cause for filing a |late 2006 California return.

So the evidence is clear that the Franchi se Tax
Board properly proposed the adjustnments denying the
charitable contribution deduction; proposing a Section 731
gain adjustnent; and proposing a late-filing penalty; and
that the Appellants have not net their burdens of proof to

show ot herw se.
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And consequently, the OTA should sustain FTB in
this case.

JUDGE HOSEY: Okay. Thank you.

M. Hanmersley, would you like to -- you're into
your closing argunent tinme now. So you were able to

cover, again, any issues before, go in-depth, continue

forward --
MR. HAMERSLEY: Do | get rebuttal or -- after?
JUDGE HOSEY: No. This will be -- this will
be -- yeah. Rebuttal will be after FTB s argunent.

So your 30 minutes wll start now.

CLOSI NG ARGUMENT

MR. HAMERSLEY: Yeah. And well, you know, those
are wonderful narratives except they have nothing to do
with reality. And the evidence will not show what
evidence -- |'ve cited specific evidence that shows
exactly the opposite.

Wth respect to the appraisals, those appraisals
were two year -- he didn't nention dates -- two years
stal e.

Wth respect to the GCM that's a 1980 GCM whi ch
reversed the private letter ruling -- '"79 private letter
ruling that |l ed to Revenue Ruling 81-242.

How on earth, in 1980, could Cerald Cohen, the
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chi ef counsel who wote GCM 38389 -- who | wanted to
testify as a wtness, but was denied -- who thinks
81-242's was a dead letter -- How on earth could they
consi der those partnership regs that were witten in 1991
in 19807

They -- what Cerald Cohen said was 752(b) is the
problem not 1033. The authors of the article --

M. Imordino and -- and his coll eague -- fornmer coll eague
suggested that to fix it -- to have a -- a single
transaction, you have -- you would have to nodify 1033.

VWell, the GCM says 1033 is not the problem it's
752(b). And 752(b) was fixed in 1991 in 1.752-1(f). The
problem s fixed.

(Reporter adnonition)

MR. HAMERSLEY: Yeah.

This is a theory that an -- articles were witten
on. You can't tax taxpayers on theories. It's not right.

|'ve spoken to the author, Gerald Cohen, of GCM
38389. He doesn't agree with it. They reference Revenue
Rul i ng 2003-59, which was adopting the liability netting
and a 1031 to say, "See? It doesn't apply in 1033 because
you need a 1033 liability offset rule Iike you have in
1031."

You don't. They're just not getting it.

The single transaction -- and Gerald Cohen
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concedes that. And -- and there was -- by the way, before
it was reversed, there was a | ot of controversy at the
| RS.

The aut hor of 2003-59 had told ne that they were
trying to include 1033, but, as usual, the cases --
revenue rulings are limted to the facts of the questions
that were asked. It was a 1031 question. Had they been
allowed to extend it to 1033, they would have.

So thisis a-- this is a problemthat exists
only in the mnd of two Franchise Tax Board attorneys. As
| said, you cannot tax a taxpayer based on that theory.
And that's 88 percent of the deficiency.

So the charitable contribution is 12 percent of
those two. So the bulk of it is this -- is this 81-242
t heory based on their notions of what GCM 38939 was and
was not .

And they're wong. They're flat wong. And the
author -- the authors of both revenue rulings have said
that. And I'd like to have them here to testify to tel
you t hat.

And the IRS has not -- has not cited that revenue
ruling since it was issued -- 40-plus years. He -- he
just nmentioned the rev. ruling. He didn't nention the
date. It's 81-242 -- it was over 40 years ago. No one's

been taxed on that except these two taxpayers that have
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come before you

Al right. So with respect to these four
el ements of res judicata. | have -- I've laid out the
el ements of res judicata. And as | said, | was under the
under standi ng, fromthe prehearing conference, that the
privity was the only elenent that was in question.

Now, all of a sudden, we're reverting back
to "There's other elenents that are in question.”

Well, I wish | -- you know, |'ve spoken to
those -- that the U S. Tax Court opinion's the final
judgnent on the nerits. And the -- it's clear that it's
t he sanme cause of action. It has the sane nucl eus of --
of operative -- common operative facts.

So Respondent, if -- if sonehow, we were to view
the -- the -- the April 30th 2015 U. S. Tax Court opinion
as sonehow being an IRS Audit Report -- which is what an
IRS Determnation is -- | nean, that would be nore in this
fictional world.

But the -- the FTB's own pre- -- prehearing
conference statenment said they would carry the burden of
proof, not the taxpayers. Well, to the extent that their
position is inconsistent wth the U S. Tax Court opinion
on Sections 170 and 731, then they have the burden, not
t he taxpayer

There's a presunption of correctness in the U S
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Tax Court opinion. They just want to disregard the -- the
chief judge of the U S. Tax Court. And they wanted to
say, "Oh. It's just a stipulated decision; therefore it's

a" -- you know, "it's really an I RS decision."

The law is well settled. That's not right.

Section 170 -- it -- basically, their position is
based on a couple of things: Those stale -- those stale
appraisals that -- you know, it was a rapidly rising

market in 2003 to 2006. And the taxpayer kept sayi ng,

“"I"' mnot closing. The price is going up. The price is

goi ng up."

And the appraisals showit. And we've already
done this with the IRS. The -- the issue was resol ved
based on a -- a neeting on the battle of appraisals.

Their appraiser was an I RS enpl oyee. Their
apprai ser did a drive-by. He doesn't live in California.
He did not visit the Sandy -- the Pal m Springs area.
There are a lot of things in the RS Exam nati ons Report
that are not quite accurate.

And as | said, the Palm Springs Unified School
District conpletely changed their story. They told the
FTB that, you know, it was taken; that's why it's a 1033.
They told the IRS that it never went down that road; it
was conpletely voluntary.

SO -- the -- there's a lot of things in the
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Exam nati on Report that are not reliable. And based on

t hat and based on the strength of the taxpayer's
appraisals froma qualified appraiser, the FTB auditor has
acknow edged they don't have their own appraiser.

They are trying to rely on an I RS appraisal --
whi ch was an I RS enpl oyee -- and -- and the FTB auditor
has acknow edged "We're not qualified. The FTB is not
qualified to chall enge appraisals.”

So let's |leave that to the experts -- the -- the
peopl e who do that for a |iving.

And we did that. And we did a battle of
appraisals wwth the IRS. And that's why -- why only
$800, 000 of $9.577 million of disallowed deficiency,
charitable contribution deduction, was ultimtely
di sal |l oned. Because the appraisals prove it.

That's what the evidence will show specifically,
not generally.

Sone of the exhibits -- point to on -- so where
they sprung with this theory -- they -- they state
t hroughout their briefs that we sonehow paid 67 percent of
t he deficiency. WelIl, $800- out of $9.577 mllion is
8.3 percent. It's not 67 percent.

That's the whited-out Exhibit X fromtheir --
their -- Respondent's Opening Brief. That's a litigations

meno. What that is -- that was the Appeals Oficer
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arguing to her boss, the Chief Counsel -- who did not |ike
their views. He thought there was weakness in the

apprai sals. He though there was weakness in the w tness
credibility. That's why it went froma conplete
deficiency -- a conplete disallowance to 8.3 percent.

The whiting out of in the argunents in the
Respondent's Opening Brief used that to springboard to say
that we paid 67 percent. What that is is they were
telling -- they were telling the Chief Counsel that they
had a 67 percent chance of victory.

VWl l, why do you concede and -- and -- and have
t he taxpayer pay 8 percent?

So a |lot changed. They're -- a lot of their
information is, really, nowhere near accurate.

And | was there firsthand, as | said. This was
the issue | was tal king about testifying. They don't have
firsthand know edge. They're readi ng docunents and giving
a viewfromit.

And I'mtelling you, | was there. | can testify
as to what happened and what did not happen. |I'ma
material wtness on that fact.

My clients woul d not have been very happy if we
paid 67 percent of the deficiency.

So as | said, that's the whole issue of res

judicata -- that we're not going to cone here and
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relitigate this battle of appraisals again. W've already
done that once on the exact sane transaction.

W went through the appraisals. As | said, they
don't have their own appraiser. They -- they're relying
on the IRS; they weren't there. It wasn't their
appraiser; it was an I RS enpl oyee.

W have an appraisal. |In fact, we have a second
apprai sal froma wonman naned Rose Sweet. She wasn't
certified. W went out and got another one. And it
said -- it's close to the one that we have in the record.

So they're | ooking at the stal e apprai sals and
sayi ng those are contenporaneous. |t doesn't take a

genius to figure out that, in a "rising rapid" market |ike

we've had recently again -- that old sales aren't good
value -- aren't good informtion.
The -- the properties in our valuations were very

close in tinme. And there were properties to support the
$20 million val ue.

They sold for way nore, and it turns out the
t axpayer was right when he put that in -- in the Purchase
and Sal es Agreenent in Section 1.2.

The -- just -- on the 81-242 issue, just to give
you the -- the exhibits, it's our Exhibit 17, 15, and 16.
17 is the Tax Notes article. 15 is the Rev. Rule 81-242.
And Exhibit 16 is -- is GCM 38389.
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On 81-242 and the GCM it -- those exhibits tel
you all you need to know, especially the Tax Notes
article.

Excuse ne one m nute, please.

| guess airplane node doesn't kill that. |
apol ogi ze for the disruption.

So yes, you nentioned the conmputational errors as
well. Exhibit 11 is EY 7 -- Section 737 conputation.

On the interest abatenent, |ook, you know, it
t ook seven years in the protest. Three years after the --
the April 2000 -- April 30th, 2015 Tax Court deci sion was
issued -- it took three years to issue the determ nation
letter.

We kept responding. That's in the correspondence

that we submtted. W had asked, again, during discovery

for FTB to say, "Is that all of the correspondence?”

They woul dn't say -- said, "Well, it's redundant
to give our correspondence. W were on -- on the other
end of it."

Well, then, just -- that's fine. Just say,

“"That's it. That's true, accurate, and conplete."
And they wouldn't do that. | can tell you;
that's it.
So if you look at -- at the lack of

communi cation; the |ack of transparency; not giving us the
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Exhibit C, the -- the Respondent's Qpening Brief; Exhibit
T letter -- snoking-gun letter; not giving us any of the
docunents in discovery; subsequent what was reflective of
what happened in the protest.

They were trying to prevail on this Section 170
and 81-242. And there just wasn't the facts of the law to
do it. So it took three years. There was conmuni cation
bet ween that 2015 to 2018 peri od.

Take a | ook at the exhibits we submtted: the --
t he Franchi se Tax Board notice 2006-1, which was recently
updated -- or nore recently updated in 2018-1. Those are
t he Docketed Protest Procedures.

Well, none -- we kept asking for those to be
foll owed, including a case devel opnent plan. W were
ignored. There was no comuni cation. There's a two-year
time frame for this kind of -- kind of issue.

As | said, it's a very sinple fact pattern and
very sinple law. \What on earth could it take you seven
years -- albeit there was a brief hiatus for the -- the
federal tax matter -- but still, on the interest-abatenent
i ssue, that's not reasonable in any world. So | would
take a | ook on those.

Exhibits 9 and 14 -- that's all the protest
corresponded [sic] in nearly seven years.

Respondent's Exhibits AA and DD -- those are the
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past exhibits that they submtted, not all the past
docunents that are relevant.

Exhibit 7-X -- 7 -- Exhibit 7, which is
Respondent's Opening Brief, X, which is the whited-out IRS
docunent .

Exhibit 25 and 26 and '7 are the -- showed that
t hey woul d not provide us with the requested I RS docunents
or past docunents.

Exhibit Tis that -- that February 15, 2013
snoki ng-gun letter, which was Exhibit Cto IRS s Audit
Report. That was withheld for five years until it was
attached as Exhibit T to the opening brief -- to
Respondent's Opening Bri ef.

Exhibit 23 is Notice 2006-6, the Docketed Protest
Procedures. And Exhibit 24 is Notice 2018- 1.

On the delinquent penalty, |'ve explained those.
That's thorough -- been thoroughly discussed in our
briefs. They just assessed w thout asking any questi ons.
There's -- there are -- it's very well described in our
brief.

But the deficiency was created fromthe position
that the return -- the 565 was filed tinely. The -- the
taxpayer's CPA, at the tine -- a return preparer -- was
termnally ill. And |I've attached a brief to show his

obituary. And he died. And then it took sonme tine.
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The -- the return with the extension was one
nmonth late. So that's reasonable cause. And it's
explained, as | said -- explained thoroughly in the
briefs.

That's -- that's it.

JUDCGE HOSEY: Sorry. That concl udes your
argunents for now?

MR HAMERSLEY: Yes.

JUDGE HOSEY: Ckay. Thank you, M. Hanersl ey.

M. | mrordino, would you |ike to begin your
cl osi ng argunents?

MR. | MMORDI NO. Thank you very nuch

CLOSI NG ARGUMENT

MR IMMORDINO | amgoing to discuss the sales
of Pal m Springs |and and the tax inpact of the partnership
distributions. And then ny colleague, Ms. Msnier, wll
cover interest abatenment and res judicata and late-filing
penal ty.

Initially, I want to address the burden of proof.
For the precedential OTA cases of Ml osky and GEF
Qperating Inc., FTB's determination is presuned correct,
and the taxpayer has the burden of proving it w ong.

Simlarly, for refund clains, per the

precedential OTA appeals of Gllespie and Jolly, LLC, a
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t axpayer bears the burden of proving entitlenent to a
refund claim See also the OTA Regul ati on Section 3219.

Furt her, Appellants have cited no | aw whi ch woul d
cause the burden to shift fromthe Appellants to the FTB.
Accordi ngly, the Appellants bear the burden of proof in
t hi s appeal .

Going to the bargain sale issue. First, | note
that in the relevant |aw, the term "condemati on" covers
em nent domain and is a terml|l wll be using going
forward

In a bargain sale, the taxpayer transfers
property in a transaction that is part sale and part
charitable contribution. For a bargain sale, two separate
requi renments nust be net:

First, Appellants nust show that the val ue of the
| and was clearly out of proportion to the anmount paid by
the School District. Second, Appellants nust show the
excess value in the land was transferred with the
intention of nmaking a gift.

Going to the first prong of whether Appellants
have shown that the value of the |land was clearly out of
proportion to the anount paid by the School D strict.

Not abl y, all contenporaneous appraisals, including
Appel | ants own appraisals by two different appraisers,

support that fair market value was paid for the |and.
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In addition, the IRS physically inspected the
| and and al so prepared an apprai sal which determ ned that
fair market value was paid for the | and.

Further, as discussed by the IRS in Exhibit B,
the RS reviewed the Appellant's new appraisal, which
valued the land at $20 million, and found that it was
bi ased, inconsistent, and did not support the val uation.

Wiile this appeal deals with the threat of
condemmation, that threat cane out just two weeks before
t he purchase agreenent was si gned.

So let's look at the year and a half during which
there was no threat of condemmation and Appellants could
have sold the land to third parties. And, in fact, the
School District even encouraged the Appellants to accept
any third-party offers.

In Exhibit H, the Appellant's attorney sunmarizes
that the School District had informed Appellants to, and |
guote, "not hesitate to accept offers fromthird parties
because the School District may not ultimately proceed
with the acquisition,"” end quote.

The School District reiterated in Exhibit | that
Appellants are free to dispose of the property as they
believe is in their best interest.

Appel l ants had the opportunity to sell to any
third parties who offered a better deal than the School
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District. But Appellants did not a sell to a third party
and chose instead to pursue negotiations with the School
District.

Let's look -- let's |ook at the negotiations
bet ween the parties and the Appellant's own words during
the final round of negotiations that led to the purchase
price.

Exhibit His a July 2005 letter fromthe
Appellant's attorney to the School District's attorney, in
whi ch the Appellant's attorney summari zes that the
Appel l ant called the School District and told themthat he
t hought the value of the land to be $550,000 per acre but
want ed at | east $600, 000 per acre based on high interest
fromthird parties.

So $600, 000 per acre is the high point that the
Appel |l ants asserted in their negotiation posturing. And
as we all know, the way negotiations work is that you ask
for the best, each side gives a little, and you neet
somewhere in the mddle.

And that's exactly what happened here with the
School District nmaking a fair market offer at $550,000 per
acre -- an anount that even Appellants' own July 2005
letter -- dated -- reflected fair market val ue.

Appel l ants accepted this offer. And the sale
cl osed at $550, 000 per acre, which is a $10.5 mllion
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sal es pri ce.

The unrelated third party also sold the adjacent
parcel of land for the sanme per-acre price. This is a
sale that was fully negotiated and that closed at fair
mar ket val ue.

The purchase price was equal to 98 percent of the
Appel I ant' s hi ghest apprai sal and 100 percent of the
School District's highest appraisal.

Now, the Appellant nentions the timng of the
apprai sals and that they were outdated. But the -- the
exhibits | just cited -- nentioned -- cane fromJuly,
which is where the Appellants nention of the property was
worth -- or July 2005, where the Appellants nentioned the
property's worth $550, 000 per acre. But he postured in
negoti ati ons that he wanted $600, 000 per acre. That was
July of 2005.

Then, during August of 2005, the School District
got an update to its appraisal. And that update was then
nodi fied in Cctober of 2005.

So in Cctober of 2005, the school district's
apprai sal reflected a val ue of $550,000 per acre. And the
Purchase Sal e Agreenent was signed just one nonth later in
Novenber of 2005.

Now, the Appellants are using a date of April of
2006. That is the date that the sale closed. The
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Purchase Sal e Agreenent was signed in Novenber of 2005.
And that is the date when the parties agreed on a price.
And that's how, especially commercial, real estate
transacti ons worKk.

You sign a Purchase Sale Agreenent. The deal is

set. And then there's a due diligence period for any

real, you know -- real property purchase. Once the due
diligence period is over, then the deal -- then the escrow
will close and the title transfers.

But the agreenent on price was in that Purchase
Sal e Agreenent. That was a binding | egal docunent. |If
either party had not wanted to go forward with their --
with their obligations under that docunent, they would be
subj ect to breach.

And agai n, in Novenber of 2005, the School
District had |l et the Appellants know about the
condemmation -- of the plan to begin condemati on process.

If the Appellants did not feel the School
District's offer was fair, they had the -- the option to
pursue renedi es through the condemati on process. But
t hey chose not to.

In Meyer Brew ng, the taxpayer values property at
$1.2 mllion but accepted $900,000. In not allow ng a
bargain sale, the Tax Court stated, and | quote, "The

t axpayer who negotiates for the best terns he can obtain
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in a commercial transaction cannot subsequently claima
deduction based upon on any excess val ue of the
contributed property," end quote.

Al so as the court in Hope stated, and | quote,
"G over Hope, now, should not be allowed to claimthat he
consented to the settlenent only because he would | ater
claima bargain sale and charitable gift to the state,”
end quot e.

Simlar to the taxpayers in Hope and Meyer
Brewi ng, Appellants engaged in | engthy negotiations which
resulted in a fair market value price and are now
precluded fromasserting a bargain sale occurred.

The facts denonstrated that Appellants have not
nmet -- nmet their burden of show ng that the value of the
| and was clearly out of proportion to the anmount paid by
t he School District.

Now, noving to the second prong of a bargain
sal e, which is whether Appellants have net their burden of
showi ng that the transfer of any excess value in the | and
was made with the intention of making a gift.

| mportantly, this appeal deals with properties
sol d under the threat of condemmation. Appellants
deferred gain fromthe sale of the Palm Springs | and under
| nternal Revenue Code Section 1033 by asserting that the

| and was sold under the threat of condemmati on.
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Appel l ants al so assert, in Exhibit Q that the
i nplications of the condemati on were so significant that
the School District would not sign the charitable
contribution form because the School District was
concerned about being legally required to pay nore for the
| and.

These statenents were nade by the Appellants
under penalty of perjury.

Now, under the case law, if Appellants feel that
they are not being offered enough for their property, then
t hey nust go through the condemati on process.

Simlar to Appellants, the taxpayers in Hope
inserted a clause in the purchase agreenent that the
t axpayer believes the value of the property exceeds the
pur chase pri ce.

The Hope court rejected his clause and stated
that such a unilateral statenent cannot change the
t axpayer's negotiated fair market value deal into a
bar gai n sal e.

The Appellants argue that they should be
consi dered under the condemnation process for sone itens
that benefit their position in this appeal but not for
others that do not benefit them

But Appellants cannot have it both ways. In

fact, the Hope court discusses exactly the
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i nappropri ateness of the advantage Appellants, fromthe

t axpayers in Hope, were trying to obtain at the crossroads
of the condemation process in tax law with the courts,
stating, and | quote, "The condemnati on procedures should
not be forced to conpete with the tax procedures for the
right to determ ne value in a condemation case," end

quot e.

Accordingly, if taxpayers felt the offer was too
| ow, they had recourse through the condemmati on process,
whi ch they chose not to pursue.

So in conclusion, it is the Appellants' burden to
show that they net each of the two separate requirenents
necessary for bargain-sale treatnent. In this appeal,
Appel | ants have satisfied neither.

This leads to the second issue in this appeal,
which is did the Appellants neet their burden of show ng
error in FTB' s assessnment that partnership distributions
exceeded the Appellants' partnership basis.

Now, as we already discussed, partners nust
recogni ze gain when distributions exceed their partnership
basis. This includes not only distributions of cash, but
the relief of partnership liabilities.

Thi s appeal deals with Appellants' distributions
fromthe MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC, also referred to

as MC Properties, LLC, in various docunents.
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Appel l ants' total cash contributions received and
partnership liabilities relieved exceeded the Appellants'
basis; and therefore, Appellants have taxabl e gain under
| RC Section 731. It is a purely nechanical result.

Regardi ng the treatnent of partnership
liabilities in an I RC Section 1033 transaction, such as we
have in this appeal, there are both a General Counse
Menorandum or GCM and a revenue ruling directly on
point, which affirns the FTB's assessnent in this appeal.

In GCM 38389, the I RS considered thoroughly --
and thoroughly reviewed the partnership liability netting
I ssue -- and specifically rejected the analysis set forth
by the Appell ants.

Now, in their opening, the Appellants nentioned
Regul ation 1.752.1(f) that was referred to as the
"single-transaction rule."

And so what this says is that, when there's a
single transaction, you net the inpact to the partnership
change in liabilities in that transaction.

The exanples given in that regul ati on are when
you contribute property, which is subject to a liability,
to a partnership. In this single transaction, there are
multiple inpacts to a partner's liabilities, and you net
it.

It al so gives the exanple of a nerger. Wen you
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have a -- a nmerger, which is a single transaction, you net
the inpact on the partnership liabilities.

But even though these -- some changes to these
regs m ght happen after the GCM the GCM still
specifically analyzed the single-transaction-netting
I Ssue.

And it said there's no way that you could have a
sale of a property followed by a purchase of another
property, potentially years later, and you could say
that's one transaction.

And the OTA nade a simlar analysis inits
decision in the Appeal of Shaeffer.

And so one -- one year after the GCM was i ssued,
the IRS then nenorialized the GCM s anal ysis and
conclusion in Revenue Ruling 81-242.

As the Ninth Grcuit Court of Appeals held,
revenue rulings are entitled to substantial judicial
deference. Wth the Ninth Grcuit stating The MKni ght
Ranch, and | quote, "It is well stated that, where federal
| aw and California |law are the sanme, federal rulings
dealing with the Internal Revenue Code are persuasive
authority in interpreting the California statute,"” end
quot e.

Al so, while not precedential, the OTA anal yzed

this same issue in 2019 in the Appeal of Scott Schaeffer.
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And consistent with the revenue ruling, nade it -- a
determ nation consistent with the FTB's assessnent in this
appeal , including analyzing the single-transaction rule.

In the briefing, the Appellants al so discuss the
unitary basis rule, as discussed in Revenue Ruling 84-53.
And this revenue ruling al so supports FTB' s assessnent.

This rule references the basis rules in IRC
section 705 and states that a taxpayer who has nultiple
direct interests in a partnership wll only have one basis
in that partnership.

So the scenarios in the revenue ruling are where
a taxpayer owns both a direct general interest and a
limted interest in the sane partnership.

So while the taxpayer has two direct interests in
t hat partnership, the taxpayer still only has one single
basis in the partnership.

This sane issue cones up -- or this sane issue
cones up with disregarded entities. Say a taxpayer owns
an interest in a partnership directly and al so owns an
interest in that sanme partnership via an entity that is
di sregarded for tax purposes.

Since the disregarded entity does not exist for
tax purposes, the taxpayer is treated as owing -- as
owni ng the disregarded entity's interest directly.

So for tax purposes, the taxpayer's two direct
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interests in the sanme partnership, i.e., the interest a
t axpayer owns directly and the interest the taxpayer owns
through the entity which is disregarded for tax purposes.

Now, in this appeal, Appellants have a
partnership interest in MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC, and
accordi ngly have a basis in MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC

Q her partnerships al so have an interest in the
MacLeod Couch Properties. However, unlike the treatnent
of disregarded entities | just nentioned, these
partnershi ps are not disregarded entities but are separate
t axpayers that have their own interests and their own
bases in MacLeod Couch Properties per | RC Section 705.

To the extent that Appellants have direct
interest in these other partnerships, Appellants woul d
have a separate basis in each partnership. However,
nothing in I RC Section 705 or the revenue ruling says that
t hese bases can be anml ganat ed.

For these reasons, the Appellants have not net
their burden of showing the error in FTB' s assessnent that
partnership distributions exceeded the Appell ants’
part nershi p basis.

And the last item| wanted to cover has to do
with the IRS settl enent.

So Exhibit 11 is the IRS Internal Settlement --

or Internal Settlenent Docunent, where the IRS di scusses
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the pros and cons of going forward with the settl enent.

| note that, as Exhibit X to Appellant -- or
Respondent's Opening Brief, we attached a -- a copy of the
schedule only. And the reason for this is that we had not
yet received permssion fromthe IRS to rel ease their
internal settlenment analysis.

And so, working with FTB's general counsel, we
figured out what woul d be perm ssible to be rel eased. And
a determ nation was nmade that that schedul e al one coul d be
rel eased wi thout the entire docunent.

Subsequently, the I RS gave us perm ssion to
rel ease the full docunment. And it's included in Exhibit
Y. On page 19 of Exhibit Y, you can see the full analysis
of the settlenment between the taxpayer and the I RS

And if you go -- at the very top it says the 2010

apprai sal value was $20 million. The sales price was

$10.5 million. The difference is anmount clainmed as a
charitabl e deduction is a -- $9.5 million. That's on line
3.

And then the next line, line 4, "estimte of

governnent's litigating hazard," 33 percent. And so the
next line, "charitable deduction for settlenent purposes,"
$3.2 mllion.

For the IRS in their settlenment of 33 percent

concession, they allowed $3.2 mllion. And they
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di sal | owed approximately $6.2 million -- or $6.3 mllion
of the clainmed charitable deduction.

And then, as you can go through the line, you'll
see deducted in 2007, deducted in 2008, deducted in 2009 a
total of $753, 000.

And then it says, "carryover to 2010 based on

solvent range,"” $2.4 mllion would carry over to 2010.
There's an A limtation that took away $114, 000.
$2.3 mllion was used to offset the taxpayer's incone.
They had clained $3.1 million. And so the resulting
assessnment was $800, 000.

You can see that very bottomline, 2011
di sal | owance i s $800,000 on that particular tax return.

So they | ost $800,000 on their 2000 -- on their
2011 tax return. Plus the renmai nder -- because it -- it
was a total, you know -- they -- the IRS disallowed
$6.2 mllion; they allowed $3.2 nmillion. And they used up
that $3.2 mllion between 2007, '8, '9, '10, and '11 --
and it got all used up in 2011; so they had to pay
$800, 000 -- or they had $800, 000 di sal | owed.

And this $800, 000 figure conports with all the
docunentation in the case. M. Hanersley has conceded
that's $800,000 in 2011. But what hasn't been brought up
is they lost $6.2 nmillion of their claimed $9.5 mllion --

or $6.3 mllion of their clainmed $9.5 mllion charitable
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deduct i on.
It's clearly a 67 percent taxpayer concession.
And with that, I'll pass it over to ny coll eague,
Ms. Mosni er.
JUDGE HOSEY: Ms. Mosnier, you have about
20 m nutes.
M5. MOSNI ER  Thank you. | was just going to ask
you for that nunber. Okay. Thank you.

FURTHER CLOSI NG ARGUVENT

M5. MOSNI ER Good afternoon. Marguerite Mosnier
for Franchise Tax Board. And | wll be addressing the
i ssues of res judicata, interest abatenent, and
late-filing penalty.

Turning first to the issue of res judicata. It
is Appellants' defense to the adjustnents and the
attendant penalty -- which are issues, | believe, 1, 2,
and 4 set out in the prehearing conference m nutes and
orders.

In other words, the Franchise Tax Board i s bound
by res judicata to follow the Tax Court judgenent for the
2006 tax year. That position is unsubstantiated by the
I aw.

And before | tal k about what res judicatais, |I'd

like to tal k about what it isn't -- is not.
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It is not, as Appellants assert, a conformty
issue. It's not entirely clear the context in which
Appel l ants are using that termtoday.

If they are using it in -- in the termthat we
often understand it as Franchi se Tax Board, which is that
we adopt as our own State tax |laws specific Internal
Revenue Code sections, we say that we have "adopted them
by conformty."

So there is that conformty. And that is
unrel ated to the concept of res judicata.

If the term"conformty" is used today to nean a
resulting action by the Franchise Tax Board that flows
fromwhat's called a "final federal determ nation,"
pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code 18622, that is also
not relevant to the concept of res judicata.

And | will speak a little bit nore about 18622
later in ny discussion about res judicata.

So what is res judicata?

It's an affirmati ve defense. And the burden of
proof to establish entitlenent to that defense rests with
the party who is asserting it.

And in -- in OTA's February 4th, 2021 order
regardi ng requests for subpoenas for docunents and w t ness
testi nmony, footnote 2, the OTA -- OTA noted the

Appel l ants' assertion that it was their burden of proof on
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this area. And the OTA agreed with that.

And as the OTA recited in Appeal -- its
precedential opinion Appeal of MII| ennium Dent al
Technol ogi es, a 2019 opinion, a party wi shing to assert
the affirmati ve defense of res judicata nust establish the
follow ng four elenents:

First, that the parties in both actions are
identical or in privity. Second, that a court of
conpetent jurisdiction nust have rendered the first
judgnent. Third, the prior action nust have resulted in a
judgnment on the nerits. And fourth, the sanme cause of
action or claimmust be involved in both actions.

Wth respect to the first elenent, obviously
there's no identity. There's no identity of parties
because it was the Internal Revenue Service at the federal
level, and it is Franchise Tax Board at the state |evel.

There is also no privity between the IRS and the
Franchi se Tax Board.

As FTB di scussed in its opening brief, California
Suprene Court defines "privity," or a "privy," as one who,
after rendition of the judgnent, has acquired an interest
in the subject matter affected by the judgnent through or
under one of the parties as by inherent succession were
pur chased.

So in other words, what we're tal king about is
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soneone who, quote, "stands in the shoes of that first
party."

FTB does not have such an interest. There is
nothing in the record that indicates FTB had any i nfl uence
on or directed the Internal Revenue Service's actions,
either during its exam nation or subsequently during the
Tax Court litigation, when the matter was conducted or
overseen by the IRS Appeals Ofice.

What there was was information sharing, which is
aut hori zed by agreenent between the Internal Revenue
Servi ce and the Franchi se Tax Board.

And that is all it is. It is a sharing of
information. It is -- it -- it vests no interest in
either party -- in the outcone reached by the other party.
And so there is no identity of parties, and there is no
privity.

Wth respect to the second el enent, Franchise Tax
Board acknow edges that the U S. Tax Court is a court of
conpetent jurisdiction. That elenment is not in dispute.

And noving on to the third elenment, which is that
t here nmust have been, in the first action, a judgnment on
the nerits.

Here, it's instructive to | ook at the Appellants’
Exhibit 10 to its opening brief -- to their opening brief

and note the first, | think it's seven words of the
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judgnent, "pursuant to the agreenent of the parties.”

This was not a matter in which the Tax Court
considered the nerits of either party's decision and
applied relevant law to reach a judgnent. It was an
acceptance of an agreenent negoti ated between the Internal
Revenue Service and the Appell ants.

And as we have just heard M. I mordino expl ain,
the Appeals Division of the IRS determned that it would
settle for 33 percent -- allow 33 percent of the clained
deduction based strictly on hazards of litigation.

That is not a judgnent on the nerits. You can
see that also if you |look at the Tax Court docket -- it is
one of the Plaintiff's additional exhibits -- one that we
di scussed at the beginning of the hearing today.

There are very few entries on that docket.
There's nothing on it -- nothing substantive between the
filing of the action in Tax Court and the entry of the
j udgnent .

And that -- that confirns the fact that the Tax
Court itself took no active role in the review of or
di sposition of the issues on appeal there. So they have
not established the third elenent either.

They are equally -- they have failed equally to
establish the fourth element -- that the sane cause of

action or claimmust be involved in both actions.
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Now, here, we have to take a step back and | ook
at the procedural -- or not the procedural -- the factua
di fference between the taxpayer's position and their
anmended return filed with FTB in Cctober of 2010 and the
sanme anended return filed at the federal |evel at that
time.

The Franchi se Tax Board processed and accepted
the 540X -- the anended return that the Appellants
filed -- the one in which they clained the charitable
contri bution deduction, which was subsequently disall owed
as shown on the Notice of Proposed Assessnent.

I f, however, you | ook at the federal account
transcript, that's Exhibit FF on page 2, you will see that
in Cctober of 2010, the Appellants did file an anended
return and that the IRS disallowed that claim

In other words, there was never a charitable
contribution deduction allowed at the federal |evel for
t he 2006 tax year.

And a third way to -- to cross check that is | ook
on the first page of the account transcript. And you see
that the federal A is the -- its around $4,200 -- it's
t he sanme anount |isted on the 540X as the anount that was
reported on the original 1040 -- on the original federal
return.

So there could not have been an adjudi cation or
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an -- an issue of the -- the charitable contribution
deduction between the IRS and the Appellants for the 2006
tax year. It was never allowed. It was never -- it was
not a part of the negotiated settl enent.

Li kewi se, with respect to the Section 731 gain
issue, the record in this case is devoid of discussion or
evi dence that indicates the I RS considered the Section 31
[sic] gain issue for this tax year.

So there has not been symetry or identity
bet ween t he causes -- or causes of actions or clains that
were resolved at the federal level and what is in dispute
before you all today.

Appel l ants have failed to establish elenents --
as | have them nunmbered here, one, three, and four -- for
res judicata. And it is not applicable in this case.

And a finding that there was no res judicata is
consistent wth Board of Equalization precedenti al
opinions starting with the Appeal of Der Wenerschnitzel
in 1975 and foll owed by Appeal of Bertrand in 1985. And
the OTA adopts this view as wel|.

In MI1lennium Dental Technol ogies, in footnote

13, the OTA noted a plaintiff's objection -- a coment
regarding an objection to a proposed penalty -- and noted
that the IRS had not assessed a -- excuse ne -- had not

assessed a penalty.
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The OTA went on to note that the FTB's assessnent
was proper in that case and that the Franchi se Tax Board
does not have to follow IRS actions and cited to Der
W enerschnit zel .

Further, if you would [ ook at the January 22,
2020 orders re discovery that the OTA issued in this
appeal and | ook at footnote 3, it is instructive:

" Appel |l ants have cited no authority for their
claimthat Franchise Tax Board is bound to accept the
| nt ernal Revenue Service's one-third concession (nmuch | ess
to treat it as a total concession as Appellants denand)
and the lawis clear to the contrary,” with cites to
Revenue and Taxati on Code 18622(a) and to Appeal, | think
it's Gselle 80-sbhe-035.

And then, finally, if we |ook at uncertainty as
to how this IRS judgnent would translate to the Franchi se
Tax Board.

It is -- the uncertainty there is reason enough
to disregard the idea that it could be a docunent that
woul d govern the outcone of this appeal.

Because there's no 731 issue or 2006 issue at the
federal level -- there was no charitable contribution
allowed -- how could you allow one-third of a proposed
deduction that wasn't even part of that?

And since there was no -- there could not be an
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effect on the proposed adjustnents or additional tax. So
the -- the Appellants have failed to establish that res
judi cata should be applied in this appeal with respect to
t he 2006 tax year.

And when | said | woul d double back to 18622 on
this topic, the conformty that FTB has -- and under

18622(a), when FTB i ssues a proposed assessnent that

results froma federal action, it's presunmed correct. And

the burden is on the taxpayer to prove that it's wong.

However, we know under Der Wenerschnitzel that
neither the OTA nor the Franchise Tax Board is bound to
follow the Internal Revenue Service.

And this is not a federal action assessnent. |t

does not result fromthe work and the determ nation of the

| nt ernal Revenue Servi ce.

And | would just nake a side note there that a

final federal determ nation -- and when we tal k about an
IRS Determnation -- it -- it does include a Tax Court
j udgnent .

1862(d) [sic] defines "final federal
determ nation" as defined in 6203 of the Internal Revenue

Code. And then, if you go to the attendant requlation --

and | believe it's Revenue Ruling 1-2007- -- I'msorry.
can't remenber the |ast nunbers -- the -- well,
actually -- actually, that part probably isn't rel evant
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t here.

What it says is what's on the account transcri pt
is evidence of the final federal determnation. And it's
a point where there this is no | onger any appeal or action
that could be taken by the Appellants. And so, of course,
that would -- that woul d enconpass the terns of the
settl enment.

So to turn now to interest abatenent, here,
agai n, the Appellants have the burden of proof.

And we know fromthe Ofice of Tax Appeal s
precedential opinion in Appeal of GEF Operating, Inc.
that to establish an abuse of discretion, the Appellants
must show that in refusing to abate interest, that the
Franchi se Tax Board exercised its discretion arbitrarily,
capriciously, or w thout sound basis in |aw and fact.

And this, the Appellants have not done. Although
i nterest abatenent is authorized in limted circunstances,
Appel I ants haven't showed entitlenent to it in this case.

FTB diligently prosecuted the protest since it
was filed. It was filed towards the end of -- the protest
filed towards the end of 2011. And FTB wote pronptly in
January of 2012 to say, "we have the appeal" -- or excuse
nme "the protest. |It's being assigned to the Protest
Unit,"” and received a request then in response from

Appel | ants asking to have the protest docketed.
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So dual time got it docketed. And then the first
Protest Hearing O ficer pronptly issued a set of info --

i nformati on and docunent request -- an IDR letter.

And that was followed later in 2012 by a
request -- a response from Appellants, asking to have that
Protest Hearing O ficer swtched out for a -- a conflict
of interest.

And there's no -- there's no record in the file
that indicates whether FTB nade any deci sion on the
nerits, whether there was any actual conflict of interest.
But -- or whether -- but to avoid the appearance of any,
there was a second Protest Hearing Oficer assigned to
this case.

And he, in early 2013, sent out IDRs and
responded to the Appellants' request since the first
January 2012 letter saying, "you know, we nay need to put
this on hold because the RS is | ooking at these sane --
is | ooking at these sane issues."”

And so while FTB then said, "Well, you know,
there are sone things, issues, perhaps we can go ahead on.
Maybe there are others that will have to wait."” And the
bottomline is that the Franchi se Tax Board accommobdat ed
t he Appellants' request to wait until there was a, quote,
"final federal determ nation" before it finished its work

on this protest.
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And it didn't happen until July of 20- -- 2015.
FTB was advi sed there had been a judgnent. And it took
al rost two years after that, waiting for I RS docunents, to
determ ne the extent to which that federal judgnent woul d
affect the outcone at the state |evel.

And, specifically, in the July 16, 2015 letter
from-- fromthe Appellants' Counsel -- or fromtheir
representative, they represented that both the charitable
contribution deduction issue and the 731 issue were
covered by that judgnent.

As it turned out, and as | said, it took FTB
al nost two years -- until 2017, to determne that it had
all the federal docunments and that there wasn't the
overlap and, further, that, in any event, it was not

required to foll ow what the IRS did.

After that, the appeal -- the -- the protest
hearing was held in May of 2018. The notices of -- the
notices of action were issued -- oh, | don't know -- a

coupl e weeks after that.

So throughout this -- throughout the entire tine
period of the protest, FTB worked with the Appellants to
accommpdate them and to keep working on the protest as --
as possi bl e.

Finally, with respect to the Section 139

|ate-filing penalty. |If you see on -- as you see it on
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Exhi bit EE, the Appellants 2006 California return was
filed Novenmber 29, 2007.

It was due April 15th. So it was nore than seven
nmonths late. And the penalty was applied -- it's applied

automatically under the | aw.

Since the -- no return had been filed during the
extension period -- there was no extension with respect to
Appellant -- so the penalty was properly conputed at the

maxi mum 25 percent rate.

The Appellants' assertion in their reply brief --
the reason it was late is that the -- their tax -- the
representative preparing the return had died is
unsupported by any docunentary evidence in record.

There is nothing to show whet her he was their
representative; whether he was preparing the return for
that year; when they | earned that he woul d be unable to
conplete that return so that they could file it; and, if
so, what steps they took to ensure that if he couldn't,

t hat soneone el se could prepare it so that they could neet
their filing obligation.

And so for a failure of proof, they have not
established that they -- that reasonabl e cause exists to
abate that penalty.

Thank you.

M. Imordino and | -- this concl udes our
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argunent. And we're happy to address your questions.
Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: Okay. Thank you.

| amgoing to check with the panel and see if
t hey have any questions before we nove forward with
rebuttal .

Judge Vassi gh, do you have any questions?

JUDGE VASSIGH: | do not. Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: Judge Le, do you have any
guesti ons?

JUDCGE LE: No questions. Thank you.

JUDGE HOSEY: Gkay. |I'mgoing to go ahead and
deny the request for testinony since we have the
docunents. And, well, it was a late request. And we
didn't have any questions regarding the factual
ci rcunst ances.

MR. HAMERSLEY: |'msorry. Wat testinony woul d
t hat be?

JUDGE HOSEY: Oh. You just requested you
woul d -- could be sworn in and testify yourself as to
personal know edge. But | just don't think we need that
at this tine.

MR. HAMERSLEY: There's been factual -- materi al
fact statenents back and forth.

JUDGE HOSEY: Yeah.
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MR. HAMERSLEY: ~-- by both sides this entire

JUDGE HOSEY: | think we have --

MR HAMERSLEY: But | -- but I amfirst -- I'm
willing to go under oath. And | have firsthand know edge.

JUDGE HOSEY: Yeah. W're not going to need that
today. But thank you. | appreciate it.

W wi |l go ahead, though, with sone rebuttal
time, if you'd |like sone.

Let me make sure | just have everything here.

Yes. You have tine for sone final statenents, if
you' d like to, M. Hanersley.

MR. HAMERSLEY: How |ong do | have?

JUDGE HOSEY: CGo ahead.

MR. HAMERSLEY: How |ong do | have, Judge?

JUDGE HOSEY: Onh, yes. You have 20 m nutes.

REBUTTAL

MR. HAMERSLEY: Ckay. Well, that -- that's
why this -- this protest took seven years.

No matter what we say, no matter what evidence we
put into the record, they keep -- they read a script. And
they just say no evidence -- we didn't prove -- they say
t he burden of proof is on us.

Well, I've expl ai ned thoroughly why the burden of
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proof shifts fromthe U S. Tax Court decision. 18622, if
you | ook at Wenerschnitzel, Gselle, MAfee -- those
cases all deal with an IRS Audit Report.

They're -- the -- the case law | gave you on the
recent Ninth Grcuit decision and the -- and the
California Suprenme decision cite well-settled | aw a
stipulated court decision, and -- froma settl enent
agreenment in litigation -- once you file a U S. Tax Court
petition, it's litigation.

You're done with the I RS when the 90-day letter
is issued. They're -- now, you're -- they're -- now,
they're their opposing party in litigation.

So | can't even begin to say how wong that was
on the |l aw on several points and how wong on the facts.

Adopt the |law and those facts at your own peril.

It's just flat wong. The docunents showit. | have
testinmony -- | have firsthand observed the -- the true
facts.

So 18622 is not accurate here. There's never
been a case where -- where -- |I'maware of where -- where
the FTB refused to follow a U. S. Tax Court decision that
was pending federal on the sane taxpayer for the sane year
for the sane transaction.

On the issue of the zero dollars in the 2006. It

carried over to the subsequent years. The -- those --
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they -- they have no idea what they're reading in those
docunents.

| negotiated that settlement. Al but $800, 000
of $9.577 mllion was allowed. They took the benefit of
that charitable contribution benefit deduction.

Those are the facts. They don't have any
firsthand know edge to the contrary. They're reading
stuff they don't understand.

On res judicata, that lawis not correct.
There's no identity required. Because -- | -- | read you
the quote. It's an identity or community of interest.

That's the law. And it's very broad. And if you

| ook at the case |aw of all of the facts that have been

viewed to be -- have an identity or comunity of
interest -- | told you, they said we didn't establish that
there was an identity or -- identity of interest.

Well, they follow the sane law. They could only

have exchanged docunents, which they did, if they had an
identity or comrunity interest in the -- in the MOA and
t he di scl osure statutes.

The -- they didn't just send docunents and
exchange it. |If you look at the -- if you |look at the
Exhi bits AA and DD, they -- they tal ked often. And
Exhibit T, the snoking-gun letter that they wouldn't give

us for five years, was the legal argunents on 731 and 170.
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| was there. The IRS | aughed at the 81-242.
Just like the chief -- fornmer Chief Counsel who wote the
GCM they don't think that's good | aw

And they say -- and the IRS, by the way, wasn't
sharing anything with us. W had to get that, ultimtely,

fromthe FTB -- fromwhat they would disclose in their
exhibits. So we were in -- just as in the dark with the
| RS.

So why woul d there be anything -- the -- the
analysis they're pointing to -- they keep saying that --
that -- that Exhibit X, which was whited out -- so you
conpare the other redactions -- they're all blacked out in
normal redaction node -- ook at the argunents nmade in the
Responding's [sic] Opening Brief that refers to that
Exhi bit X

He's making the 67 percent argunent there. W
didn't pay 67 percent. |It's flat wong. And if he had
| eft those -- if he had |left those paragraphs above and
below in the |ine-itemdescription, that argunment would
not hold. |It's contradicted by the information that was
renoved -- was whited out.

Way woul d you white out information? You said
you were waiting on IRS approval -- that -- they had that
those -- those letters for a long tine. Wy did you put

it inthere at all?
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And if you did, when you put it in, why didn't
you redact it in normal fashion to | et people know that

t here was sonet hi ng renoved?

SO -- on -- on -- on the rest of the |law, the
81-242, 1've already testified or argued how t hat works
and -- and doesn't worKk.

They just categorically do not understand the | aw
or the facts. And no matter what we say or what we
wite -- and that's why we've had to wite volunes in this
case, and we've had to spend inordinate anounts of tine to
try to get the rest of the docunents, the rest of the past
docunents, the rest of the IRS docunents that they just
sel ectively chose to put little pieces in.

If you | ook at Exhibits AA and DD, their own
docunents, you will also see that there's a reference in
there that says the IRS -- the Tax Court decision --
what -- after speaking with the IRS, was decided on the
nerits.

It wasn't litigation hazards. They had
67 percent chance of winning -- is what it says in their
meno.

The reason they settled at 8.3 percent is because
their appraisal was horrible. It was froman |IRS agent.
And our appraisals were -- showed -- showed the val ue and

supported it, and because their witness, as | said, in the
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Pal m Springs Unified School District switched their story
and was conpletely unreliable.

Their case, on the nerits, was terrible. And
that's why it was settled at 8.3 percent. 67 percent is a
fiction. And it's the carryover, | guess -- that they
don't understand how that worKks.

Bottom | ine, $800,000 of $9.577 mllion was al
that was disallowed. That's 8.3 percent; it's not
67 percent.

So | don't know what to tell you. Read the
docunents. |'d love to give firsthand testinony under
oath. |I'mnot able to do that.

|'"d love to have other w tnesses testify about
81-242 -- what it neans and what it doesn't. You can read
their own article. It makes all the argunents that it's
not good | aw.

So they'll say that's not authority. It sure as
heck is a statenent of the intent, interest, or -- or an
adm ssion that our position is well supported.

So when you're | ooking at the weight of evidence,
consider all those things.

They said that we didn't submt any evidence that
the CPA had died. | submtted his obituary that
referenced that he had a long-termill ness.

There was no di al ogue. Wen you don't have
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comruni cation with a taxpayer for seven years -- and you
can see fromthe -- the -- the -- all of the emails that |
put in -- that's it over seven years.

When you don't have communi cations and you hide

your actions in -- in -- in violating 2006-6 and
transparency policies that this -- this OTA is under as
well -- when you hire -- it's going to take a long tine,

and you're not going to get it right.

If you would talk to the taxpayer and -- and you
woul d |isten and you woul dn't keep repeating the sane
script no matter what they say or what they give you, then
we wouldn't -- it wouldn't have taken seven years.

It took two years with the I RS because, finally,
we got to a point where they realized the appraisals were
bad. That the IRS appraisers -- appraisal was bad from
M. Power, the IRS enployee -- and that their wtness on
all those statenents that were reiterated here, were not
reliable or accurate.

So -- the credibility and the wei ght of evidence
matters. Narratives are just that. They're useless

statenments unless they' re supported by docunents.

And they're -- they're citing docunents to say
they're supported. |I'mtrying to tell you that's not what
t hose docunents say. And nmy -- ny -- ny testinony can

enlighten that because | was there. And |I'mthe one who
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negoti ated several of those docunents.

That's all we have to say.

JUDGE HOSEY: Okay. Thank you.

|"mjust going to check with ny panel again to
see if there's any questions before we submt the case.

Judge Vassi gh, do you have any questions?

JUDCGE VASSI G+ | do not.

JUDGE HOSEY: Judge Le, any ot her questions?

JUDGE LE: No questions. Thank you.

JUDCGE HOSEY: Okay. Then we are ready to submt
the case today. The record is now cl osed.

Thi s concludes our hearing. And the panel wll
meet and deci de the case based on the exhibits and
argunents presented. W will aimto send both parties our
witten decision no |ater than 100 days from t oday.

Thank you all for your participation. The
hearing i s now adjourned. Thank you.

(Proceedi ngs concluded at 3:58 p.m)
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REPORTER S CERTI FI CATI ON

I, Sarah M Tuman, RPR, CSR No. 14463, a
Certified Shorthand Reporter in and for the State of
California, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing proceedi ngs were taken before
nme at the time and place herein set forth; that any
Wi tnesses in the foregoi ng proceedings, prior to
testifying, were duly sworn; that a record of the
proceedi ngs was nmade by ne using nmachi ne shorthand, which
was thereafter transcribed under ny direction; that the
foregoing transcript is a true record of the testinony
gi ven.

Further, that if the foregoing pertains to the
original transcript of a deposition in a federal case,
before conpl etion of the proceedings, review of the
transcript [] was [X] was not requested.

| further certify | amneither financially
interested in the action nor a relative or enpl oyee of any
attorney or party to this action.

IN WTNESS WHERECF, | have this date subscribed
ny nane.

Sarah M Timtan, C.5F FER 5P No. 1637
Dated: November 4. 2022 AWM Tantan Cok Kk CoR Ab. f#46
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       1     Sacramento, California; Wednesday, September 21, 2022

       2                           2:15 p.m.

       3                           -- oOo --

       4            JUDGE HOSEY:  We are opening the record in the

       5   Appeal of MacLeod.  This matter is being held before the

       6   Office of Tax Appeals, Case Number 18093762.  Today is

       7   September 21, 2022, and it's 2:15 p.m.  We're here in

       8   Sacramento, California.

       9            I am the Lead Administrative Law Judge, Sara

      10   Hosey.  And with me today are Judge Vassigh and Judge Le.

      11   All three Judges will meet after the hearing and produce a

      12   written decision as equal participants.

      13            Although the Lead Judge will conduct the hearing,

      14   any Judge on this panel may ask questions or otherwise

      15   participate to ensure that we have all the information

      16   needed to decide this appeal.

      17            Can I please have the parties state their names

      18   for the record.

      19            Mr. Hamersley?

      20            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Michael Hamersley for the

      21   Appellant.

      22            MR. IMMORDINO:  Ciro Immordino for the Franchise

      23   Tax Board.

      24            MS. MOSNIER:  Marguerite Mosnier for the

      25   Franchise Tax Board.
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       1            JUDGE HOSEY:  Thank you.

       2            The issues we have in front of us today are

       3   whether Appellants made an IRC Section 170 bargain sale of

       4   the Palm Springs land; who has the burden of proof on this

       5   issue; did Appellants have gain under IRC Section 731; if

       6   so, was there a computational error; and who has the

       7   burden of proof on this issue; whether under the doctrine

       8   of res judicata and other concerns such as conformity and

       9   disclosure, cause -- bar FTB's proposed California tax

      10   deficiencies; whether Appellants have shown interest

      11   should be abated pursuant to R&TC Section 1914; have

      12   Appellants shown reasonable cause to abate the late filing

      13   tax return penalty for the 2006 tax year.

      14            These issues were set forth in the prehearing

      15   conference minutes and orders issued on September 26,

      16   2022.

      17            Mr. Hamersley, do those sound accurate?

      18            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yes.  With -- with exception to

      19   the res judicata complexity --

      20            JUDGE HOSEY:  Can you get a little closer to your

      21   microphone?

      22            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yes.  With the -- with the

      23   exception to the res judicata complexity that I made

      24   earlier.

      25            JUDGE HOSEY:  Right.  Regarding res judicata,
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       1   conformity, and disclosure issues.

       2            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yes.

       3            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Mr. Immordino, is that

       4   accurate?

       5            MR. IMMORDINO:  Yes.  Thank you.

       6            JUDGE HOSEY:  Thank you.

       7            For exhibits, we admitted Exhibits 1 through 22,

       8   for Appellant, and A through DD, for Franchise Tax Board,

       9   into the record via the prehearing conference minutes and

      10   orders issued on September 6, 2022.

      11            (Appellants' Exhibit Nos. 1-22 were previously

      12            received in evidence by the Administrative Law

      13            Judge.)

      14            (Department's Exhibit Nos. A-DD were previously

      15            received in evidence by the Administrative Law

      16            Judge.)

      17            JUDGE HOSEY:  Mr. Hamersley, you submitted 23

      18   through 30 on behalf of Appellants.

      19            Mr. Immordino, do you have any objection to these

      20   documents?

      21            MR. IMMORDINO:  No.  Thank you.

      22            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Exhibits 23 through 30 are

      23   now admitted as evidence into the record.

      24            (Appellants' Exhibit Nos. 23-30 were received in

      25            evidence by the Administrative Law Judge.)
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       1            JUDGE HOSEY:  Mr. Immordino, you have submitted

       2   Exhibits EE and FF on behalf of the Respondent, Franchise

       3   Tax Board.

       4            Mr. Hamersley, do you have any objections to

       5   these two documents?

       6            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Just the ones I registered

       7   previously.

       8            JUDGE HOSEY:  Yes.  Mr. Hamersley was concerned

       9   about new information this late in the hearing process.

      10            However, both Exhibits EE, the FTB Returns

      11   Received Display Printout for tax year 2006, and FF, IRS

      12   Account Transcript for Appellants for tax year 2006, have

      13   information in them that is in the record to date.  So I'm

      14   going to allow these documents -- overrule the objection.

      15            But we will consider all objections when weighing

      16   the evidence and making our decision pursuant to

      17   Regulation 30124(f)(4).

      18            So that being said, Exhibits EE and FF are now

      19   admitted as evidence into the record.

      20            (Department's Exhibit Nos. EE-FF were received in

      21            evidence by the Administrative Law Judge.)

      22            JUDGE HOSEY:  All right.  Mr. Hamersley, are you

      23   ready for your opening statement?

      24            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yes, I am, Judge.

      25            JUDGE HOSEY:  You have 20 minutes.  Any time you

0009

       1   do not use, we will hold over.  Go ahead and begin.

       2   

       3                       OPENING STATEMENT

       4            MR. HAMERSLEY:  So I -- before I get into the --

       5   the substantive issues, on this issues of the weighing of

       6   the evidence, I'd like to point out that in weighing the

       7   evidence, even though the -- the OTA does not adopt the

       8   Evidence Code, Section 412 of the Evidence Code discusses

       9   the weighing of evidence with respect to weak -- weak

      10   evidence.

      11            So I'm speaking with respect to exhibits like

      12   they're [sic] just submitted -- like the Exhibits AA and

      13   DD that were past documents -- that were all, rather

      14   than -- than provide all of them as requested in a

      15   production request and the subpoena request -- that

      16   they're -- they're -- they feel comfortable, you know, in

      17   the protection of the order, they don't have to.

      18            But what you do when you get that is the -- the

      19   Cookston presumption -- I'm sure you're familiar with --

      20   you cite it often -- but also this Evidence Code 412.

      21            When you don't turn over -- and if you look in

      22   Exhibits AA and DD in the IRS communications and on, you

      23   know, the other past folders and things referenced in

      24   there -- and Judge Hosey, I know you worked at FTB.

      25   You're familiar with the past system.  There's lots of
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       1   different folders and documents and stuff.

       2            We asked for those.  All we got were exhibits

       3   attached to their briefs.  We got no production on the

       4   request.

       5            So here's what Section 412 says with respect to

       6   the weight of it -- to be given to evidence, quote, "If

       7   weaker and less satisfactory evidence is offered, when it

       8   was within the power of the party --"

       9            (Reporter admonition)

      10            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yes.

      11            They have the sole possession of the past

      12   documents and the IRS communications.

      13            "If weaker and less satisfactory evidence is

      14   offered, when it was within the power of a party to

      15   produce stronger and more satisfactory evidence, the

      16   evidence offered should be viewed with distrust."

      17            Appeal of Don A. Cookston, cited often by the

      18   OTA, it is well established -- quote, "It is well

      19   established that the failure of a party to introduce

      20   evidence, which is within his or her control, gives rise

      21   to the presumption that, if provided, it would be

      22   unfavorable."

      23            So that's -- that's the rest of the bargain they

      24   bought when they -- when they didn't turn over those

      25   documents.
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       1            They're -- they're documents -- and I'll point

       2   out with respect to the -- they're not authenticated, and

       3   they're not complete in many cases.

       4            ROB Exhibit X is a perfect example.  ROB Exhibit

       5   X was whited out, not redacted in black, as I'll point out

       6   later.  The line item that made their point in the brief

       7   67 -- purportedly paid 67 percent of the deficiency was

       8   disallowed to the IRS.

       9            It was 8.3 percent.  They made that point.  They

      10   cited Exhibit X, whited out the bottom and the top and the

      11   line-item description of the 33 percent where they got

      12   their 67.

      13            I've never seen such a thing.  That evidence is

      14   completely unreliable.

      15            Exhibit Y, attached to their RRB -- their --

      16   their reply brief -- page 19 to 40 is that document.  And

      17   you can compare the two.  They whited out the sections

      18   that -- that contradicted the argument they were making in

      19   their Respondent's Opening Brief citing Exhibit X.

      20            So the weight given to their documentary evidence

      21   should be zero.  It's not reliable.

      22            And as I said, the exhibits that should be looked

      23   at -- their ROB's Exhibit X, which was our 7; ROB Exhibit

      24   Y, which is our 8; ROB's Exhibit T, referred to as the

      25   "smoking-gun letter" that was withheld from us for a
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       1   period of five years.

       2            That was issued on February 15, 2013.  It was

       3   cited as Exhibit C in the IRS examinations report.  The

       4   IRS would not give it to us.  When we asked for it, they

       5   said the FTB Protest Hearing Officer requested

       6   confidentiality.  You'll have to get it from him.

       7            When we asked for it, we were repeatedly denied.

       8   It was finally attached to -- parts of it -- to the

       9   Exhibit T to the Respondent's Opening Brief.  That is not

      10   reliable evidence.

      11            Also Exhibits 25 and 26 show the subpoena

      12   request, the two categories of documents, the past

      13   documents, and the -- and the IRS documents, which are

      14   referenced repeatedly, as I said, in Exhibits AA and DD of

      15   Respondent's briefs.

      16            All right.  With that said, you know, here we are

      17   11 years -- 11 years into this -- this protest -- this

      18   appeal -- 7 of which was in the protest -- during the

      19   protest -- just -- just under 7 years.

      20            If you look at even the Exhibits AA and DD, what

      21   on earth were you doing for 7 years?  This -- that all

      22   goes to the -- the interest-abatement issue.

      23            But the transaction is actually quite simple.

      24   And so I'd like to explain the transaction.  The law is

      25   quite simple.  There are only Federal Income Tax Code
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       1   Provisions -- 170 and 731 -- as Judge -- Judge Hosey said.

       2            So the ownership structure exhibit -- the

       3   Respondent's Reply Brief Exhibit AA has a diagram of

       4   the -- of the ownership structure.

       5            Basically, the Appellants owned -- I think it was

       6   58-point-something percent directly -- indirectly of MC

       7   Properties.  MC Property owned -- owned two part -- MC

       8   Properties was a tax partnership.  They -- LLC -- was a

       9   tax partnership.

      10            They owned two parcels of land that totaled

      11   19.- -- I think it was -- -16 acres.

      12            On or about 2003, they entered into negotiations

      13   with the Palm Springs Unified School District to sell that

      14   property to them.  The Palm Springs Unified School

      15   District is a 501 organization to the extent there's

      16   excess value of the sale, there's a charitable

      17   contribution deduction.

      18            So the -- the negotiations went on from 2003 and

      19   did not finally close until April 28th of 2006.  There was

      20   a -- a letter that threatened condemnation.  And finally,

      21   the taxpayer caved.  And that's referenced in Section 1.2

      22   of the Purchase and Sale Agreement.

      23            Two things to reference there -- that it was

      24   under threat of condemnation and it's a 1033 transaction.

      25   No one disagrees about that.  Well, 1033 is either
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       1   condemnation or threat of condemnation.

       2            And the -- the -- the sale then took place and

       3   closed on April 28th of 2006 for $10.558 million, I think

       4   it was.

       5            The taxpayer wrote contemporaneously in Section

       6   1.2 of the Purchase and Sale Agreement that the value of

       7   the property well exceeds that $10.5 million and -- and

       8   documented that and the fact -- the fact that it was under

       9   threat of eminent domain.

      10            The problem here on the threat of eminent domain

      11   is the appraisals and all the IRS stuff that -- that

      12   Respondent relies upon -- Respondent's closing letter,

      13   before we filed the protest -- treated that transaction as

      14   a constructive condemnation.

      15            They said, "You didn't give your property away.

      16   There's no domain intent.  They took it from you."

      17            Well, when the IRS went and talked to the Palm

      18   Springs Unified School District after getting all of the

      19   FTB's arguments and Exhibit T and all the documents they

      20   sent to them, the Palm Springs Unified School District

      21   told them the exact opposite:  It never went down that

      22   road.

      23            Well, how's it a 1033 transaction?

      24            So the witness then, you know, on this was --

      25   is -- switched their stories -- granted, it was a new
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       1   person and -- at the Palm Springs Unified School

       2   District -- but they were very adamant that there was no

       3   threat, despite the existence of this threat letter and

       4   despite the fact that all the parties agree it was a 1033

       5   transaction.

       6            So the -- the witnesses supplying information to

       7   the FTB and the IRS are questionable.

       8            So the bargain sale transaction took place.  As I

       9   said, it was a 1033 transaction.

      10            Procedural history of the case -- this case

      11   started with the Franchise Tax Board.  The protest got it

      12   right about the beginning of -- we filed the protest at

      13   the end of 2011; they got it beginning of 2012.

      14            Not long after, there were some IDR requests.

      15   And then the IRS opened an audit.  And the original --

      16   notice of proposed adjustment we got quoted a

      17   typographical and grammatical error from the FTB's APE's.

      18            So it was clear at that point.  We knew they were

      19   sharing information.  We asked -- we asked the disclosure

      20   office; they denied it.

      21            They got into this -- this little debate about

      22   what a "third-party contact" is.  And we said

      23   "third-party," under the statute, is anyone but the

      24   taxpayer.  The question is whether you have to disclose it

      25   in 19504.7.
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       1            Just -- they wouldn't answer the question.

       2   And -- and as we know in Exhibit T, which was cited in the

       3   IRS Examinations Report, there were many communications.

       4   It's in those Exhibits AA and DD.  We now know.

       5            Even though we didn't get the documents, it's

       6   absolutely clear from the evidence and the record -- they

       7   were -- they were talking regularly.

       8            And -- and in Exhibit T, the -- the legal

       9   analysis was written from the Franchise Tax Board to

      10   the -- to the IRS, which adopted their arguments.  And

      11   then vice versa, when the Notice of -- of Assessment was

      12   issued from the IRS, the FTB adopted their arguments.

      13            So there was a lot of coordination.  That'll --

      14   that'll get to the privity issue.

      15            So as I said, what -- what happened is, when the

      16   IRS then issued their Notice of Deficiency, which is a

      17   90-day letter, that's the end of the IRS controversy.

      18   You're -- now, you're working with IRS Appeals and their

      19   Litigation Section.

      20            If you want to pursue an appeal, you have to file

      21   a Tax Court petition.  That's litigation.  We -- as

      22   exhibit -- we gave you Exhibit 3 and 4 that show the

      23   docket and show the Tax Court decision.

      24            I don't know why on earth we are still calling

      25   this an "IRS Determination."  An IRS Determination is an
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       1   IRS examinations -- an IRS audit report.

       2            It is very clear that that is a decision of a

       3   court of competent jurisdiction of the United States Tax

       4   Court.

       5            So I don't know why we're talking about an IRS

       6   Determination.  We don't agree with the IRS Determination.

       7   They -- they completely -- the IRS Determination

       8   completely disallowed the deduction, which was reversed by

       9   the Tax Court.

      10            So, as I said, there's only two -- two major code

      11   sections here.  Section 170 -- I think 12 percent of the

      12   deficiencies attributable to that -- the bulk of it, I

      13   think 88 percent is attributable to the 731 --

      14   specifically, Revenue Ruling 81-242 theory.

      15            We're being taxed on the theory based on an

      16   article that the two attorneys -- the two attorneys from

      17   Franchise Tax Board that have argued the two cases they've

      18   had on this -- wrote -- and the -- the -- the article,

      19   which is Exhibit 17, makes our case.

      20            It says it's a horrible, horrible policy --

      21   horrible rule.  It should be done away with.  But they

      22   argue that, you know, because if you -- I'll get into

      23   that -- when you look at the history of that Rev. Rule, it

      24   was originally a taxpayer-favorable ruling that GCM 38389

      25   reversed and said that Section 1033 and 752(b) operate
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       1   independently.  The problem isn't 1033; it's 752.

       2            Well in 1991, regulations were passed in

       3   1.752-1(f) that allowed liability that it -- you got to

       4   fix that problem.

       5            The IRS has not litigated or even addressed in

       6   any administrative controversy have they taken a position

       7   in administrative guidance that 81-242 is still a good

       8   law.

       9            And yet here we are -- 88 percent of our

      10   deficiency is attributable to this theory.  That there's a

      11   lot -- that there's a transitory liability relief -- that,

      12   specifically, when the replacement property was purchased

      13   on that Palm Springs Unified sale [sic] District to

      14   qualify for 1033 treatment -- that when the -- when the

      15   liabilities on the sale property were paid off -- that you

      16   cannot view the replacement property transaction that are

      17   bookends for nonrecognition, under 1033, as part of a

      18   single transaction.

      19            And so we stopped.  And if you look in the middle

      20   and you cut it off, you'll have a transitory relief of

      21   liabilities that gives rise to a Section 731 gained --

      22   deemed distribution.

      23            The Franchise Tax Board freely acknowledges that

      24   if an individual had done that transaction, there'd be no

      25   problem.  There's no -- this is purely a function of the
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       1   partnership.

       2            This -- this -- this proposed issue -- if an

       3   individual had -- had done that exact same transaction,

       4   there would be no -- no -- no gain -- 731 gain.

       5            Res judicata -- as I said, the Tax Court

       6   determination letter is not -- the Tax Court April 30 of

       7   2015 decision is not an IRS Determination.  It's a -- it's

       8   a -- it's a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction.

       9            The I -- the FTB -- well let me back up a little

      10   bit.  There are three elements to res judicata.  It

      11   appears -- I'm not -- never clear what they've

      12   acknowledged or not acknowledged -- but it seems like

      13   we've limited it to this privity issue.

      14            There's three elements to it that -- that --

      15   the -- you have a final judgment on the merits.  The U.S.

      16   Tax Court opinion is that.  It's not an IRS Determination.

      17   You -- and that -- it's the same cause of action.

      18            Well, the California Franchise Tax -- or the

      19   Revenue and Taxation Code is derivative for Sections 1- --

      20   it conforms to Sections 170 and 731.  The tax for

      21   California state tax purposes is derivative of the federal

      22   income tax.

      23            The United States Tax Court looked at the exact

      24   issue of what are the federal -- federal income tax

      25   consequences applying the Internal Revenue Code 170 and
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       1   731 to that exact same transaction for the exact same

       2   taxpayer for the same tax year.

       3            And the -- the FTB does not want to follow it.

       4   If there's no federal conformity here, and they do not

       5   have to follow this U.S. Tax Court decision, federal

       6   conformity is a complete fiction.  You'll never have a

       7   better case than this for them being required to follow

       8   fed.

       9            So on the issue of privity, the last prong -- the

      10   privity that the -- that the -- we -- the privity looks at

      11   one of the things -- one of the things it looks at is

      12   mutuality.

      13            There is no question that, had the Tax Court gone

      14   differently and gone against the taxpayer, that this

      15   taxpayer would be barred and would have to pay the state

      16   tax based on the federal tax liability -- the decision of

      17   the U.S. Tax Court.

      18            The FTB is playing this -- when they put it

      19   "pending federal" and agreed to do that, they're playing

      20   this "heads, FTB wins; tails, taxpayer loses" game.  And

      21   it's -- it's -- it's a ridiculously bad policy.

      22            So looking at the -- the issue of privity.  This

      23   was recently addressed establishing the -- with respect to

      24   the final judgment stipulated Tax Court -- stipulated

      25   court decision being a final judgement on the merits for
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       1   res judicata purposes.  There's a lot -- I mean, it's well

       2   settled.

       3            But it was recently addressed in an October 4th,

       4   Ninth Circuit opinion Frank Lane Italiane.  And it --

       5   Frank Lane Jr. and Alicia -- BAP Number EC-20-1247-SGF --

       6   and it confirms that, while subtle -- the law on it cites

       7   California law -- California Automobile Association versus

       8   Superior Court 50 Cal.3d 658, 664-665.

       9            On the issue -- on the standard for res

      10   judicata -- or privity, there was a June 3rd, 2022

      11   California Supreme Court opinion, Lynn Grande versus

      12   Eisenhower Fresh.  And it, again, says here's the

      13   established standard:

      14            Identity or community of interest -- quote,

      15   "Identity or community of interest" --

      16            (Reporter admonition)

      17            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Sure.

      18            "The standard for privity is an identity or

      19   community of interest such that the interest represented

      20   in the first action reasonably should have" -- they should

      21   reasonably expected to be bound -- the -- the party in

      22   privity in the first act -- in the second action should

      23   have reasonably expected to be bound in the first suit.

      24            They cited the long-standing California standard

      25   in DKN Holdings 61 Cal.4th, 826.
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       1            So, you know, I had mentioned it's not just the

       2   IRS communications that -- that caused the FTB to be in

       3   privity.  And there are lots of them.  And they got --

       4   they certainly had their chance to speak up and -- and

       5   make their case.

       6            They did it in Exhibit T to their opening brief,

       7   argued their position.  And then as the past documents,

       8   their Exhibits AA and DD, show, they had early and

       9   often -- they had lots of communications with the IRS.

      10            So the -- the -- privity is established by the

      11   fact that the Protest Hearing Officer, who happens to be

      12   the tax counsel here, reviewed the tax documents provided

      13   by the IRS and decided to put it "pending federal,"

      14   deciding that it was the same transaction tax year and

      15   federal income tax issues.  That's an identity or

      16   community of interest.

      17            The conformity policy -- conforming to a federal

      18   law is an identity or community of interest.  It's, in

      19   fact -- it's derivative.

      20            The documents shared under the disclosure statute

      21   and the MOA that's required to do that can only be

      22   lawfully shared by the FTB and IRS and vice versa if there

      23   was an identity and community of interest in the subject

      24   matter.

      25            There's a right to know and a need to know.  FTB
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       1   had significant, as I said -- significant input and

       2   meaningful voice in the IRS matters by sending its legal

       3   analysis and regularly communicating.

       4            So that's the part about, you know, how much

       5   communication was there?

       6            We'd like to see all of the documents.  All of

       7   the IRS -- and we don't have anywhere near those.  We were

       8   never given -- we have what they -- what they attached to

       9   their exhibits.  That's all we have.

      10            JUDGE HOSEY:  Mr. Hamersley, you have about a

      11   minute left.  Although, it seems that we're getting into

      12   some argument.  So you -- if FTB is comfortable with

      13   waiving an opening and -- and just moving into arguments,

      14   we are able -- you can use the 30 minutes of argument as

      15   well.

      16            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Probably makes sense, yeah.

      17            JUDGE HOSEY:  Mr. Immordino?

      18            MR. IMMORDINO:  That's fine.  Thank you.

      19            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  So you'd just be moving into

      20   your arguments, as well, after Mr. Hamersley, if you --

      21   or -- Mrs. Mosnier as well --

      22            MS. MOSNIER:  If -- if you wouldn't mind, we

      23   might like just a short few minute's opening statements.

      24            JUDGE HOSEY:  Would you like to do that now?  Or

      25   would you like to -- hold on.  Let me stop my clock.
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       1            Would you like to do that now?  Or would you like

       2   to wait until we finish with Mr. Hamersley?  He's on issue

       3   three right now.

       4            MS. MOSNIER:  We would defer to the -- to the

       5   OTA.  Although, our request would be to do it now.

       6            MR. HAMERSLEY:  That's fine.

       7            JUDGE HOSEY:  Mr. Hamersley, what are you

       8   comfortable with?

       9            MR. HAMERSLEY:  That's fine.

      10            JUDGE HOSEY:  We'll do a short -- okay.

      11            FTB, please proceed.

      12            MR. IMMORDINO:  Thank you.  Yeah.  I think it

      13   would help to have an opening just to kind of lay some

      14   foundation.

      15            JUDGE HOSEY:  I'm sorry.  Can you get a little

      16   closer --

      17            MR. IMMORDINO:  Oh, no.  Thank you.

      18            JUDGE HOSEY:  Sorry.  I turned my mic off.

      19            Can you just get a little closer so we can hear

      20   you?

      21            MR. IMMORDINO:  Is this better?

      22            JUDGE HOSEY:  Yes.  Thank you.

      23            MR. IMMORDINO:  Sorry about that.

      24            JUDGE HOSEY:  It's okay.  Thanks.

      25            MR. IMMORDINO:  I think that having an opening
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       1   would help lay a little bit of foundation, make it a

       2   little bit better.

       3   

       4                       OPENING STATEMENT

       5            MR. IMMORDINO:  Okay.  So thank you very much.

       6            I am going to discuss the Palm Springs land and

       7   the tax impact of Appellants' partnership distributions.

       8   Then my colleague, Ms. Mosnier, will cover interest

       9   abatement, res judicata, and the late-filing penalty.

      10            The first issue in this appeal is whether

      11   Appellants met their burden to show that they had a

      12   bargain sale of land.

      13            In a bargain sale, the taxpayer transfers

      14   property in a transaction that is part sale and part

      15   charitable contribution.  Like most cases arising out of

      16   real estate transactions, this appeal is document heavy,

      17   and the documents show what happened.

      18            The Palm Springs Unified School District was

      19   interested in purchasing land which was owned by

      20   Appellants and others through LLC's.

      21            The School District was also interested in

      22   purchasing the adjacent parcel of land which was owned by

      23   an unrelated third party.

      24            During a lengthy negotiation, the School District

      25   and Appellants had multiple appraisals prepared.  And as
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       1   real estate prices rose during this period, so did the

       2   valuations in the appraisals.

       3            Appellants had two separate appraisers prepare a

       4   total of three appraisals, which had valuations starting

       5   at $8.2 million and ending at $10.7 million.

       6            Similarly, the School District's appraisers

       7   prepared appraisals with valuations starting at

       8   $8.2 million and ending at $10.5 million.

       9            Ultimately, the parties agreed on a sales price

      10   of $10.5 million.  The unrelated third party also sold the

      11   adjacent parcel of land for the same per-acre sales price.

      12            During negotiations, Appellants brought up the

      13   option of a part sale, part charitable contribution.  The

      14   School District considered that approach but ultimately

      15   made a fair market value offer and even had the purchase

      16   agreement specifically state that the sale was made at

      17   fair market value.

      18            Appellants originally filed a 2006 tax return,

      19   did not report the sale of the land as a bargain sale.  It

      20   was not until four and a half years after the sale and the

      21   middle of the audit that Appellants filed an amended tax

      22   return and claimed that the value of the land was worth

      23   approximately $20 million, which is almost twice the sales

      24   price.

      25            To support this inflated valuation, Appellants

0027

       1   did not use either of the two appraisers that they'd used

       2   during the sales negotiations.

       3            Instead, Appellants used a new appraiser who

       4   prepared a valuation for tax purposes.  During the IRS

       5   examination, the IRS inspected the land and also prepared

       6   an appraisal.

       7            The IRS determined that the School District had

       8   paid fair market value for the land.  Further, the IRS

       9   appraiser rejected the Appellants inflated $20 million

      10   appraisal, finding that it was inconsistent and biased.

      11            To get bargain sale treatment, two separate

      12   requirements must be met:  First, the Appellants must show

      13   the value of the land was clearly out of proportion to the

      14   amount paid by the School District.  Here, the evidence

      15   will show that Appellants were paid fair market value for

      16   the land.

      17            Second, Appellants must show that the excess

      18   value in the land was transferred with the intention of

      19   making a gift.  Here, the law does not allow there to be

      20   intent to make a charitable contribution because the

      21   Appellants accepted the School District's fair market

      22   value offer.

      23            Regarding Appellants' assertions to the contrary,

      24   the IRS summarized its discussions with the School

      25   District as follows, and I quote:  "The attorney and
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       1   retired director stated that the taxpayer statements on

       2   the Form 8283 attachment are not accurate and misrepresent

       3   the School District's position at the time of the

       4   transaction," end quote.

       5            In addition, the courts have been especially

       6   unwilling to allow taxpayers to unilaterally assert a gift

       7   occurred when they receive a fair market value offer,

       8   particularly in the background of eminent domain

       9   proceedings such as in this appeal.

      10            As courts state, if the Appellant did not feel

      11   the offer was fair, they had recourse through the eminent

      12   domain process -- an option the Appellant chose not to

      13   pursue.

      14            Next, I want to discuss -- let's see.

      15            I'm going to discuss the -- the tax impact of

      16   Appellants' partnership distributions.

      17            Subchapter K of the Internal Revenue Code gives

      18   partners in a partnership significant flexibility.

      19   However, with that flexibility, Subchapter K also gives

      20   limitations.

      21            This appeal deals with one of those limitations.

      22   Specifically, the limitations surrounding a partner's

      23   basis in a partnership.

      24            When a partner puts something into a partnership

      25   or recognizes gain, their partnership basis increases.
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       1   Similarly, when a partner takes distributions out of the

       2   partnership, their partnership basis decreases.

       3            A partner can take distributions out of a

       4   partnership without owing any tax as long as they have

       5   basis to cover the distributions.

       6            However, when a partner's distributions exceed

       7   their basis, Subchapter K requires that they recognize

       8   gain.

       9            In this appeal, Appellants received cash

      10   distributions and the relief of partnership liabilities,

      11   which is also treated as a cash distribution.  These

      12   distributions exceeded the Appellants' basis in the

      13   MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC.  And so the Appellants are

      14   required to recognize gain.

      15            Regarding the portion of the distributions

      16   related to the relief of partnership liabilities, there is

      17   an IRS General Counsel Memorandum directly on point.  The

      18   General Counsel Memorandum, or GCM, analyzes the impact or

      19   the relief of the partnership liabilities in IRC Section

      20   1033 transactions such as we have in this appeal.

      21            The GCM specifically considers the Appellant's

      22   position, fully analyzes it, and then rejects it,

      23   including the single transaction netting rule that

      24   Mr. Hamersley mentioned was passed in '91.

      25            Then one year later, a revenue ruling is issued
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       1   which memorializes the analysis and determination in the

       2   GCM and which is consistent with the FTB's position in

       3   this appeal.

       4            Finally, there is discussion of a Tax Notes

       5   article which proposes a law change.  This article is

       6   written by a tax practitioner in their personal capacity.

       7            Further, while not authoritative, the article

       8   reiterates that the law requires a result consistent with

       9   the FTB's assessment and that a law change would be

      10   necessary for a contrary result.

      11            And with that, I'll pass it to my colleague,

      12   Ms. Mosnier.  Thank you very much.

      13            JUDGE HOSEY:  Ms. Mosnier, you have about 13

      14   minutes.

      15   

      16                     FURTHER OPENING STATEMENT

      17            MS. MOSNIER:  Thank you.  Good afternoon.

      18   Marguerite Mosnier for Franchise Tax Board.  And thank

      19   you, Mr. Immordino.

      20            I'd like to talk a bit about the concept of res

      21   judicata, interest abatement, and the Section 19131

      22   late-filing penalty.

      23            Res judicata is an affirmative defense.  It must

      24   be proven -- it's offered up and proven by the Appellants.

      25   They must establish four elements to avail themselves of

0031

       1   this defense.

       2            The evidence will show that the Appellants have

       3   not established three of the four elements necessary to

       4   prove res judicata should govern the disposition of this

       5   appeal.  And there is no requirement that FTB follow a Tax

       6   Court judgment with respect to tax year 2006.

       7            And similarly, the statutory right to interest

       8   abatement depends on the Appellant's having shown there

       9   was an unreasonable delay by FTB in working the underlying

      10   protest in this case.  And here again, the evidence will

      11   show that there was no unreasonable delay or delay at all

      12   by the Franchise Tax Board.

      13            Further, the -- the evidence will show that any

      14   delay that the OTA may determine is attributable to the

      15   Appellants.

      16            And finally, with respect to the late-filing

      17   penalty -- and this applies only to the 2006 tax year --

      18   the record reflects a lack of evidence to establish

      19   reasonable cause for filing a late 2006 California return.

      20            So the evidence is clear that the Franchise Tax

      21   Board properly proposed the adjustments denying the

      22   charitable contribution deduction; proposing a Section 731

      23   gain adjustment; and proposing a late-filing penalty; and

      24   that the Appellants have not met their burdens of proof to

      25   show otherwise.
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       1            And consequently, the OTA should sustain FTB in

       2   this case.

       3            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Thank you.

       4            Mr. Hamersley, would you like to -- you're into

       5   your closing argument time now.  So you were able to

       6   cover, again, any issues before, go in-depth, continue

       7   forward --

       8            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Do I get rebuttal or -- after?

       9            JUDGE HOSEY:  No.  This will be -- this will

      10   be -- yeah.  Rebuttal will be after FTB's argument.

      11            So your 30 minutes will start now.

      12   

      13                        CLOSING ARGUMENT

      14            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yeah.  And well, you know, those

      15   are wonderful narratives except they have nothing to do

      16   with reality.  And the evidence will not show what

      17   evidence -- I've cited specific evidence that shows

      18   exactly the opposite.

      19            With respect to the appraisals, those appraisals

      20   were two year -- he didn't mention dates -- two years

      21   stale.

      22            With respect to the GCM, that's a 1980 GCM which

      23   reversed the private letter ruling -- '79 private letter

      24   ruling that led to Revenue Ruling 81-242.

      25            How on earth, in 1980, could Gerald Cohen, the
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       1   chief counsel who wrote GCM 38389 -- who I wanted to

       2   testify as a witness, but was denied -- who thinks

       3   81-242's was a dead letter -- How on earth could they

       4   consider those partnership regs that were written in 1991

       5   in 1980?

       6            They -- what Gerald Cohen said was 752(b) is the

       7   problem, not 1033.  The authors of the article --

       8   Mr. Immordino and -- and his colleague -- former colleague

       9   suggested that to fix it -- to have a -- a single

      10   transaction, you have -- you would have to modify 1033.

      11            Well, the GCM says 1033 is not the problem; it's

      12   752(b).  And 752(b) was fixed in 1991 in 1.752-1(f).  The

      13   problem's fixed.

      14            (Reporter admonition)

      15            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yeah.

      16            This is a theory that an -- articles were written

      17   on.  You can't tax taxpayers on theories.  It's not right.

      18            I've spoken to the author, Gerald Cohen, of GCM

      19   38389.  He doesn't agree with it.  They reference Revenue

      20   Ruling 2003-59, which was adopting the liability netting

      21   and a 1031 to say, "See?  It doesn't apply in 1033 because

      22   you need a 1033 liability offset rule like you have in

      23   1031."

      24            You don't.  They're just not getting it.

      25            The single transaction -- and Gerald Cohen
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       1   concedes that.  And -- and there was -- by the way, before

       2   it was reversed, there was a lot of controversy at the

       3   IRS.

       4            The author of 2003-59 had told me that they were

       5   trying to include 1033, but, as usual, the cases --

       6   revenue rulings are limited to the facts of the questions

       7   that were asked.  It was a 1031 question.  Had they been

       8   allowed to extend it to 1033, they would have.

       9            So this is a -- this is a problem that exists

      10   only in the mind of two Franchise Tax Board attorneys.  As

      11   I said, you cannot tax a taxpayer based on that theory.

      12   And that's 88 percent of the deficiency.

      13            So the charitable contribution is 12 percent of

      14   those two.  So the bulk of it is this -- is this 81-242

      15   theory based on their notions of what GCM 38939 was and

      16   was not.

      17            And they're wrong.  They're flat wrong.  And the

      18   author -- the authors of both revenue rulings have said

      19   that.  And I'd like to have them here to testify to tell

      20   you that.

      21            And the IRS has not -- has not cited that revenue

      22   ruling since it was issued -- 40-plus years.  He -- he

      23   just mentioned the rev. ruling.  He didn't mention the

      24   date.  It's 81-242 -- it was over 40 years ago.  No one's

      25   been taxed on that except these two taxpayers that have
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       1   come before you.

       2            All right.  So with respect to these four

       3   elements of res judicata.  I have -- I've laid out the

       4   elements of res judicata.  And as I said, I was under the

       5   understanding, from the prehearing conference, that the

       6   privity was the only element that was in question.

       7            Now, all of a sudden, we're reverting back

       8   to "There's other elements that are in question."

       9            Well, I wish I -- you know, I've spoken to

      10   those -- that the U.S. Tax Court opinion's the final

      11   judgment on the merits.  And the -- it's clear that it's

      12   the same cause of action.  It has the same nucleus of --

      13   of operative -- common operative facts.

      14            So Respondent, if -- if somehow, we were to view

      15   the -- the -- the April 30th 2015 U.S. Tax Court opinion

      16   as somehow being an IRS Audit Report -- which is what an

      17   IRS Determination is -- I mean, that would be more in this

      18   fictional world.

      19            But the -- the FTB's own pre- -- prehearing

      20   conference statement said they would carry the burden of

      21   proof, not the taxpayers.  Well, to the extent that their

      22   position is inconsistent with the U.S. Tax Court opinion

      23   on Sections 170 and 731, then they have the burden, not

      24   the taxpayer.

      25            There's a presumption of correctness in the U.S.
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       1   Tax Court opinion.  They just want to disregard the -- the

       2   chief judge of the U.S. Tax Court.  And they wanted to

       3   say, "Oh.  It's just a stipulated decision; therefore it's

       4   a" -- you know, "it's really an IRS decision."

       5            The law is well settled.  That's not right.

       6            Section 170 -- it -- basically, their position is

       7   based on a couple of things:  Those stale -- those stale

       8   appraisals that -- you know, it was a rapidly rising

       9   market in 2003 to 2006.  And the taxpayer kept saying,

      10   "I'm not closing.  The price is going up.  The price is

      11   going up."

      12            And the appraisals show it.  And we've already

      13   done this with the IRS.  The -- the issue was resolved

      14   based on a -- a meeting on the battle of appraisals.

      15            Their appraiser was an IRS employee.  Their

      16   appraiser did a drive-by.  He doesn't live in California.

      17   He did not visit the Sandy -- the Palm Springs area.

      18   There are a lot of things in the IRS Examinations Report

      19   that are not quite accurate.

      20            And as I said, the Palm Springs Unified School

      21   District completely changed their story.  They told the

      22   FTB that, you know, it was taken; that's why it's a 1033.

      23   They told the IRS that it never went down that road; it

      24   was completely voluntary.

      25            So -- the -- there's a lot of things in the
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       1   Examination Report that are not reliable.  And based on

       2   that and based on the strength of the taxpayer's

       3   appraisals from a qualified appraiser, the FTB auditor has

       4   acknowledged they don't have their own appraiser.

       5            They are trying to rely on an IRS appraisal --

       6   which was an IRS employee -- and -- and the FTB auditor

       7   has acknowledged "We're not qualified.  The FTB is not

       8   qualified to challenge appraisals."

       9            So let's leave that to the experts -- the -- the

      10   people who do that for a living.

      11            And we did that.  And we did a battle of

      12   appraisals with the IRS.  And that's why -- why only

      13   $800,000 of $9.577 million of disallowed deficiency,

      14   charitable contribution deduction, was ultimately

      15   disallowed.  Because the appraisals prove it.

      16            That's what the evidence will show specifically,

      17   not generally.

      18            Some of the exhibits -- point to on -- so where

      19   they sprung with this theory -- they -- they state

      20   throughout their briefs that we somehow paid 67 percent of

      21   the deficiency.  Well, $800- out of $9.577 million is

      22   8.3 percent.  It's not 67 percent.

      23            That's the whited-out Exhibit X from their --

      24   their -- Respondent's Opening Brief.  That's a litigations

      25   memo.  What that is -- that was the Appeals Officer
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       1   arguing to her boss, the Chief Counsel -- who did not like

       2   their views.  He thought there was weakness in the

       3   appraisals.  He though there was weakness in the witness

       4   credibility.  That's why it went from a complete

       5   deficiency -- a complete disallowance to 8.3 percent.

       6            The whiting out of in the arguments in the

       7   Respondent's Opening Brief used that to springboard to say

       8   that we paid 67 percent.  What that is is they were

       9   telling -- they were telling the Chief Counsel that they

      10   had a 67 percent chance of victory.

      11            Well, why do you concede and -- and -- and have

      12   the taxpayer pay 8 percent?

      13            So a lot changed.  They're -- a lot of their

      14   information is, really, nowhere near accurate.

      15            And I was there firsthand, as I said.  This was

      16   the issue I was talking about testifying.  They don't have

      17   firsthand knowledge.  They're reading documents and giving

      18   a view from it.

      19            And I'm telling you, I was there.  I can testify

      20   as to what happened and what did not happen.  I'm a

      21   material witness on that fact.

      22            My clients would not have been very happy if we

      23   paid 67 percent of the deficiency.

      24            So as I said, that's the whole issue of res

      25   judicata -- that we're not going to come here and
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       1   relitigate this battle of appraisals again.  We've already

       2   done that once on the exact same transaction.

       3            We went through the appraisals.  As I said, they

       4   don't have their own appraiser.  They -- they're relying

       5   on the IRS; they weren't there.  It wasn't their

       6   appraiser; it was an IRS employee.

       7            We have an appraisal.  In fact, we have a second

       8   appraisal from a woman named Rose Sweet.  She wasn't

       9   certified.  We went out and got another one.  And it

      10   said -- it's close to the one that we have in the record.

      11            So they're looking at the stale appraisals and

      12   saying those are contemporaneous.  It doesn't take a

      13   genius to figure out that, in a "rising rapid" market like

      14   we've had recently again -- that old sales aren't good

      15   value -- aren't good information.

      16            The -- the properties in our valuations were very

      17   close in time.  And there were properties to support the

      18   $20 million value.

      19            They sold for way more, and it turns out the

      20   taxpayer was right when he put that in -- in the Purchase

      21   and Sales Agreement in Section 1.2.

      22            The -- just -- on the 81-242 issue, just to give

      23   you the -- the exhibits, it's our Exhibit 17, 15, and 16.

      24   17 is the Tax Notes article.  15 is the Rev. Rule 81-242.

      25   And Exhibit 16 is -- is GCM 38389.
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       1            On 81-242 and the GCM, it -- those exhibits tell

       2   you all you need to know, especially the Tax Notes

       3   article.

       4            Excuse me one minute, please.

       5            I guess airplane mode doesn't kill that.  I

       6   apologize for the disruption.

       7            So yes, you mentioned the computational errors as

       8   well.  Exhibit 11 is EY 7 -- Section 737 computation.

       9            On the interest abatement, look, you know, it

      10   took seven years in the protest.  Three years after the --

      11   the April 2000 -- April 30th, 2015 Tax Court decision was

      12   issued -- it took three years to issue the determination

      13   letter.

      14            We kept responding.  That's in the correspondence

      15   that we submitted.  We had asked, again, during discovery

      16   for FTB to say, "Is that all of the correspondence?"

      17            They wouldn't say -- said, "Well, it's redundant

      18   to give our correspondence.  We were on -- on the other

      19   end of it."

      20            Well, then, just -- that's fine.  Just say,

      21   "That's it.  That's true, accurate, and complete."

      22            And they wouldn't do that.  I can tell you;

      23   that's it.

      24            So if you look at -- at the lack of

      25   communication; the lack of transparency; not giving us the
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       1   Exhibit C, the -- the Respondent's Opening Brief; Exhibit

       2   T letter -- smoking-gun letter; not giving us any of the

       3   documents in discovery; subsequent what was reflective of

       4   what happened in the protest.

       5            They were trying to prevail on this Section 170

       6   and 81-242.  And there just wasn't the facts of the law to

       7   do it.  So it took three years.  There was communication

       8   between that 2015 to 2018 period.

       9            Take a look at the exhibits we submitted:  the --

      10   the Franchise Tax Board notice 2006-1, which was recently

      11   updated -- or more recently updated in 2018-1.  Those are

      12   the Docketed Protest Procedures.

      13            Well, none -- we kept asking for those to be

      14   followed, including a case development plan.  We were

      15   ignored.  There was no communication.  There's a two-year

      16   time frame for this kind of -- kind of issue.

      17            As I said, it's a very simple fact pattern and

      18   very simple law.  What on earth could it take you seven

      19   years -- albeit there was a brief hiatus for the -- the

      20   federal tax matter -- but still, on the interest-abatement

      21   issue, that's not reasonable in any world.  So I would

      22   take a look on those.

      23            Exhibits 9 and 14 -- that's all the protest

      24   corresponded [sic] in nearly seven years.

      25            Respondent's Exhibits AA and DD -- those are the
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       1   past exhibits that they submitted, not all the past

       2   documents that are relevant.

       3            Exhibit 7-X -- 7 -- Exhibit 7, which is

       4   Respondent's Opening Brief, X, which is the whited-out IRS

       5   document.

       6            Exhibit 25 and 26 and '7 are the -- showed that

       7   they would not provide us with the requested IRS documents

       8   or past documents.

       9            Exhibit T is that -- that February 15, 2013

      10   smoking-gun letter, which was Exhibit C to IRS's Audit

      11   Report.  That was withheld for five years until it was

      12   attached as Exhibit T to the opening brief -- to

      13   Respondent's Opening Brief.

      14            Exhibit 23 is Notice 2006-6, the Docketed Protest

      15   Procedures.  And Exhibit 24 is Notice 2018-1.

      16            On the delinquent penalty, I've explained those.

      17   That's thorough -- been thoroughly discussed in our

      18   briefs.  They just assessed without asking any questions.

      19   There's -- there are -- it's very well described in our

      20   brief.

      21            But the deficiency was created from the position

      22   that the return -- the 565 was filed timely.  The -- the

      23   taxpayer's CPA, at the time -- a return preparer -- was

      24   terminally ill.  And I've attached a brief to show his

      25   obituary.  And he died.  And then it took some time.
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       1            The -- the return with the extension was one

       2   month late.  So that's reasonable cause.  And it's

       3   explained, as I said -- explained thoroughly in the

       4   briefs.

       5            That's -- that's it.

       6            JUDGE HOSEY:  Sorry.  That concludes your

       7   arguments for now?

       8            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Yes.

       9            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Thank you, Mr. Hamersley.

      10            Mr. Immordino, would you like to begin your

      11   closing arguments?

      12            MR. IMMORDINO:  Thank you very much.

      13   

      14                        CLOSING ARGUMENT

      15            MR. IMMORDINO:  I am going to discuss the sales

      16   of Palm Springs land and the tax impact of the partnership

      17   distributions.  And then my colleague, Ms. Mosnier, will

      18   cover interest abatement and res judicata and late-filing

      19   penalty.

      20            Initially, I want to address the burden of proof.

      21   For the precedential OTA cases of Molosky and GEF

      22   Operating Inc., FTB's determination is presumed correct,

      23   and the taxpayer has the burden of proving it wrong.

      24            Similarly, for refund claims, per the

      25   precedential OTA appeals of Gillespie and Jolly, LLC, a
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       1   taxpayer bears the burden of proving entitlement to a

       2   refund claim.  See also the OTA Regulation Section 3219.

       3            Further, Appellants have cited no law which would

       4   cause the burden to shift from the Appellants to the FTB.

       5   Accordingly, the Appellants bear the burden of proof in

       6   this appeal.

       7            Going to the bargain sale issue.  First, I note

       8   that in the relevant law, the term "condemnation" covers

       9   eminent domain and is a term I will be using going

      10   forward.

      11            In a bargain sale, the taxpayer transfers

      12   property in a transaction that is part sale and part

      13   charitable contribution.  For a bargain sale, two separate

      14   requirements must be met:

      15            First, Appellants must show that the value of the

      16   land was clearly out of proportion to the amount paid by

      17   the School District.  Second, Appellants must show the

      18   excess value in the land was transferred with the

      19   intention of making a gift.

      20            Going to the first prong of whether Appellants

      21   have shown that the value of the land was clearly out of

      22   proportion to the amount paid by the School District.

      23   Notably, all contemporaneous appraisals, including

      24   Appellants own appraisals by two different appraisers,

      25   support that fair market value was paid for the land.
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       1            In addition, the IRS physically inspected the

       2   land and also prepared an appraisal which determined that

       3   fair market value was paid for the land.

       4            Further, as discussed by the IRS in Exhibit B,

       5   the IRS reviewed the Appellant's new appraisal, which

       6   valued the land at $20 million, and found that it was

       7   biased, inconsistent, and did not support the valuation.

       8            While this appeal deals with the threat of

       9   condemnation, that threat came out just two weeks before

      10   the purchase agreement was signed.

      11            So let's look at the year and a half during which

      12   there was no threat of condemnation and Appellants could

      13   have sold the land to third parties.  And, in fact, the

      14   School District even encouraged the Appellants to accept

      15   any third-party offers.

      16            In Exhibit H, the Appellant's attorney summarizes

      17   that the School District had informed Appellants to, and I

      18   quote, "not hesitate to accept offers from third parties

      19   because the School District may not ultimately proceed

      20   with the acquisition," end quote.

      21            The School District reiterated in Exhibit I that

      22   Appellants are free to dispose of the property as they

      23   believe is in their best interest.

      24            Appellants had the opportunity to sell to any

      25   third parties who offered a better deal than the School
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       1   District.  But Appellants did not a sell to a third party

       2   and chose instead to pursue negotiations with the School

       3   District.

       4            Let's look -- let's look at the negotiations

       5   between the parties and the Appellant's own words during

       6   the final round of negotiations that led to the purchase

       7   price.

       8            Exhibit H is a July 2005 letter from the

       9   Appellant's attorney to the School District's attorney, in

      10   which the Appellant's attorney summarizes that the

      11   Appellant called the School District and told them that he

      12   thought the value of the land to be $550,000 per acre but

      13   wanted at least $600,000 per acre based on high interest

      14   from third parties.

      15            So $600,000 per acre is the high point that the

      16   Appellants asserted in their negotiation posturing.  And

      17   as we all know, the way negotiations work is that you ask

      18   for the best, each side gives a little, and you meet

      19   somewhere in the middle.

      20            And that's exactly what happened here with the

      21   School District making a fair market offer at $550,000 per

      22   acre -- an amount that even Appellants' own July 2005

      23   letter -- dated -- reflected fair market value.

      24            Appellants accepted this offer.  And the sale

      25   closed at $550,000 per acre, which is a $10.5 million
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       1   sales price.

       2            The unrelated third party also sold the adjacent

       3   parcel of land for the same per-acre price.  This is a

       4   sale that was fully negotiated and that closed at fair

       5   market value.

       6            The purchase price was equal to 98 percent of the

       7   Appellant's highest appraisal and 100 percent of the

       8   School District's highest appraisal.

       9            Now, the Appellant mentions the timing of the

      10   appraisals and that they were outdated.  But the -- the

      11   exhibits I just cited -- mentioned -- came from July,

      12   which is where the Appellants mention of the property was

      13   worth -- or July 2005, where the Appellants mentioned the

      14   property's worth $550,000 per acre.  But he postured in

      15   negotiations that he wanted $600,000 per acre.  That was

      16   July of 2005.

      17            Then, during August of 2005, the School District

      18   got an update to its appraisal.  And that update was then

      19   modified in October of 2005.

      20            So in October of 2005, the school district's

      21   appraisal reflected a value of $550,000 per acre.  And the

      22   Purchase Sale Agreement was signed just one month later in

      23   November of 2005.

      24            Now, the Appellants are using a date of April of

      25   2006.  That is the date that the sale closed.  The

0048

       1   Purchase Sale Agreement was signed in November of 2005.

       2   And that is the date when the parties agreed on a price.

       3   And that's how, especially commercial, real estate

       4   transactions work.

       5            You sign a Purchase Sale Agreement.  The deal is

       6   set.  And then there's a due diligence period for any

       7   real, you know -- real property purchase.  Once the due

       8   diligence period is over, then the deal -- then the escrow

       9   will close and the title transfers.

      10            But the agreement on price was in that Purchase

      11   Sale Agreement.  That was a binding legal document.  If

      12   either party had not wanted to go forward with their --

      13   with their obligations under that document, they would be

      14   subject to breach.

      15            And again, in November of 2005, the School

      16   District had let the Appellants know about the

      17   condemnation -- of the plan to begin condemnation process.

      18            If the Appellants did not feel the School

      19   District's offer was fair, they had the -- the option to

      20   pursue remedies through the condemnation process.  But

      21   they chose not to.

      22            In Meyer Brewing, the taxpayer values property at

      23   $1.2 million but accepted $900,000.  In not allowing a

      24   bargain sale, the Tax Court stated, and I quote, "The

      25   taxpayer who negotiates for the best terms he can obtain
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       1   in a commercial transaction cannot subsequently claim a

       2   deduction based upon on any excess value of the

       3   contributed property," end quote.

       4            Also as the court in Hope stated, and I quote,

       5   "Grover Hope, now, should not be allowed to claim that he

       6   consented to the settlement only because he would later

       7   claim a bargain sale and charitable gift to the state,"

       8   end quote.

       9            Similar to the taxpayers in Hope and Meyer

      10   Brewing, Appellants engaged in lengthy negotiations which

      11   resulted in a fair market value price and are now

      12   precluded from asserting a bargain sale occurred.

      13            The facts demonstrated that Appellants have not

      14   met -- met their burden of showing that the value of the

      15   land was clearly out of proportion to the amount paid by

      16   the School District.

      17            Now, moving to the second prong of a bargain

      18   sale, which is whether Appellants have met their burden of

      19   showing that the transfer of any excess value in the land

      20   was made with the intention of making a gift.

      21            Importantly, this appeal deals with properties

      22   sold under the threat of condemnation.  Appellants

      23   deferred gain from the sale of the Palm Springs land under

      24   Internal Revenue Code Section 1033 by asserting that the

      25   land was sold under the threat of condemnation.

0050

       1            Appellants also assert, in Exhibit Q, that the

       2   implications of the condemnation were so significant that

       3   the School District would not sign the charitable

       4   contribution form because the School District was

       5   concerned about being legally required to pay more for the

       6   land.

       7            These statements were made by the Appellants

       8   under penalty of perjury.

       9            Now, under the case law, if Appellants feel that

      10   they are not being offered enough for their property, then

      11   they must go through the condemnation process.

      12            Similar to Appellants, the taxpayers in Hope

      13   inserted a clause in the purchase agreement that the

      14   taxpayer believes the value of the property exceeds the

      15   purchase price.

      16            The Hope court rejected his clause and stated

      17   that such a unilateral statement cannot change the

      18   taxpayer's negotiated fair market value deal into a

      19   bargain sale.

      20            The Appellants argue that they should be

      21   considered under the condemnation process for some items

      22   that benefit their position in this appeal but not for

      23   others that do not benefit them.

      24            But Appellants cannot have it both ways.  In

      25   fact, the Hope court discusses exactly the

0051

       1   inappropriateness of the advantage Appellants, from the

       2   taxpayers in Hope, were trying to obtain at the crossroads

       3   of the condemnation process in tax law with the courts,

       4   stating, and I quote, "The condemnation procedures should

       5   not be forced to compete with the tax procedures for the

       6   right to determine value in a condemnation case," end

       7   quote.

       8            Accordingly, if taxpayers felt the offer was too

       9   low, they had recourse through the condemnation process,

      10   which they chose not to pursue.

      11            So in conclusion, it is the Appellants' burden to

      12   show that they met each of the two separate requirements

      13   necessary for bargain-sale treatment.  In this appeal,

      14   Appellants have satisfied neither.

      15            This leads to the second issue in this appeal,

      16   which is did the Appellants meet their burden of showing

      17   error in FTB's assessment that partnership distributions

      18   exceeded the Appellants' partnership basis.

      19            Now, as we already discussed, partners must

      20   recognize gain when distributions exceed their partnership

      21   basis.  This includes not only distributions of cash, but

      22   the relief of partnership liabilities.

      23            This appeal deals with Appellants' distributions

      24   from the MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC, also referred to

      25   as MC Properties, LLC, in various documents.
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       1            Appellants' total cash contributions received and

       2   partnership liabilities relieved exceeded the Appellants'

       3   basis; and therefore, Appellants have taxable gain under

       4   IRC Section 731.  It is a purely mechanical result.

       5            Regarding the treatment of partnership

       6   liabilities in an IRC Section 1033 transaction, such as we

       7   have in this appeal, there are both a General Counsel

       8   Memorandum, or GCM, and a revenue ruling directly on

       9   point, which affirms the FTB's assessment in this appeal.

      10            In GCM 38389, the IRS considered thoroughly --

      11   and thoroughly reviewed the partnership liability netting

      12   issue -- and specifically rejected the analysis set forth

      13   by the Appellants.

      14            Now, in their opening, the Appellants mentioned

      15   Regulation 1.752.1(f) that was referred to as the

      16   "single-transaction rule."

      17            And so what this says is that, when there's a

      18   single transaction, you net the impact to the partnership

      19   change in liabilities in that transaction.

      20            The examples given in that regulation are when

      21   you contribute property, which is subject to a liability,

      22   to a partnership.  In this single transaction, there are

      23   multiple impacts to a partner's liabilities, and you net

      24   it.

      25            It also gives the example of a merger.  When you
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       1   have a -- a merger, which is a single transaction, you net

       2   the impact on the partnership liabilities.

       3            But even though these -- some changes to these

       4   regs might happen after the GCM, the GCM still

       5   specifically analyzed the single-transaction-netting

       6   issue.

       7            And it said there's no way that you could have a

       8   sale of a property followed by a purchase of another

       9   property, potentially years later, and you could say

      10   that's one transaction.

      11            And the OTA made a similar analysis in its

      12   decision in the Appeal of Shaeffer.

      13            And so one -- one year after the GCM was issued,

      14   the IRS then memorialized the GCM's analysis and

      15   conclusion in Revenue Ruling 81-242.

      16            As the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals held,

      17   revenue rulings are entitled to substantial judicial

      18   deference.  With the Ninth Circuit stating The McKnight

      19   Ranch, and I quote, "It is well stated that, where federal

      20   law and California law are the same, federal rulings

      21   dealing with the Internal Revenue Code are persuasive

      22   authority in interpreting the California statute," end

      23   quote.

      24            Also, while not precedential, the OTA analyzed

      25   this same issue in 2019 in the Appeal of Scott Schaeffer.
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       1   And consistent with the revenue ruling, made it -- a

       2   determination consistent with the FTB's assessment in this

       3   appeal, including analyzing the single-transaction rule.

       4            In the briefing, the Appellants also discuss the

       5   unitary basis rule, as discussed in Revenue Ruling 84-53.

       6   And this revenue ruling also supports FTB's assessment.

       7            This rule references the basis rules in IRC

       8   section 705 and states that a taxpayer who has multiple

       9   direct interests in a partnership will only have one basis

      10   in that partnership.

      11            So the scenarios in the revenue ruling are where

      12   a taxpayer owns both a direct general interest and a

      13   limited interest in the same partnership.

      14            So while the taxpayer has two direct interests in

      15   that partnership, the taxpayer still only has one single

      16   basis in the partnership.

      17            This same issue comes up -- or this same issue

      18   comes up with disregarded entities.  Say a taxpayer owns

      19   an interest in a partnership directly and also owns an

      20   interest in that same partnership via an entity that is

      21   disregarded for tax purposes.

      22            Since the disregarded entity does not exist for

      23   tax purposes, the taxpayer is treated as owing -- as

      24   owning the disregarded entity's interest directly.

      25            So for tax purposes, the taxpayer's two direct
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       1   interests in the same partnership, i.e., the interest a

       2   taxpayer owns directly and the interest the taxpayer owns

       3   through the entity which is disregarded for tax purposes.

       4            Now, in this appeal, Appellants have a

       5   partnership interest in MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC, and

       6   accordingly have a basis in MacLeod Couch Properties, LLC.

       7            Other partnerships also have an interest in the

       8   MacLeod Couch Properties.  However, unlike the treatment

       9   of disregarded entities I just mentioned, these

      10   partnerships are not disregarded entities but are separate

      11   taxpayers that have their own interests and their own

      12   bases in MacLeod Couch Properties per IRC Section 705.

      13            To the extent that Appellants have direct

      14   interest in these other partnerships, Appellants would

      15   have a separate basis in each partnership.  However,

      16   nothing in IRC Section 705 or the revenue ruling says that

      17   these bases can be amalgamated.

      18            For these reasons, the Appellants have not met

      19   their burden of showing the error in FTB's assessment that

      20   partnership distributions exceeded the Appellants'

      21   partnership basis.

      22            And the last item I wanted to cover has to do

      23   with the IRS settlement.

      24            So Exhibit 11 is the IRS Internal Settlement --

      25   or Internal Settlement Document, where the IRS discusses
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       1   the pros and cons of going forward with the settlement.

       2            I note that, as Exhibit X to Appellant -- or

       3   Respondent's Opening Brief, we attached a -- a copy of the

       4   schedule only.  And the reason for this is that we had not

       5   yet received permission from the IRS to release their

       6   internal settlement analysis.

       7            And so, working with FTB's general counsel, we

       8   figured out what would be permissible to be released.  And

       9   a determination was made that that schedule alone could be

      10   released without the entire document.

      11            Subsequently, the IRS gave us permission to

      12   release the full document.  And it's included in Exhibit

      13   Y.  On page 19 of Exhibit Y, you can see the full analysis

      14   of the settlement between the taxpayer and the IRS.

      15            And if you go -- at the very top it says the 2010

      16   appraisal value was $20 million.  The sales price was

      17   $10.5 million.  The difference is amount claimed as a

      18   charitable deduction is a -- $9.5 million.  That's on line

      19   3.

      20            And then the next line, line 4, "estimate of

      21   government's litigating hazard," 33 percent.  And so the

      22   next line, "charitable deduction for settlement purposes,"

      23   $3.2 million.

      24            For the IRS in their settlement of 33 percent

      25   concession, they allowed $3.2 million.  And they
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       1   disallowed approximately $6.2 million -- or $6.3 million

       2   of the claimed charitable deduction.

       3            And then, as you can go through the line, you'll

       4   see deducted in 2007, deducted in 2008, deducted in 2009 a

       5   total of $753,000.

       6            And then it says, "carryover to 2010 based on

       7   solvent range," $2.4 million would carry over to 2010.

       8   There's an AGI limitation that took away $114,000.

       9   $2.3 million was used to offset the taxpayer's income.

      10   They had claimed $3.1 million.  And so the resulting

      11   assessment was $800,000.

      12            You can see that very bottom line, 2011

      13   disallowance is $800,000 on that particular tax return.

      14            So they lost $800,000 on their 2000 -- on their

      15   2011 tax return.  Plus the remainder -- because it -- it

      16   was a total, you know -- they -- the IRS disallowed

      17   $6.2 million; they allowed $3.2 million.  And they used up

      18   that $3.2 million between 2007, '8, '9, '10, and '11 --

      19   and it got all used up in 2011; so they had to pay

      20   $800,000 -- or they had $800,000 disallowed.

      21            And this $800,000 figure comports with all the

      22   documentation in the case.  Mr. Hamersley has conceded

      23   that's $800,000 in 2011.  But what hasn't been brought up

      24   is they lost $6.2 million of their claimed $9.5 million --

      25   or $6.3 million of their claimed $9.5 million charitable
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       1   deduction.

       2            It's clearly a 67 percent taxpayer concession.

       3            And with that, I'll pass it over to my colleague,

       4   Ms. Mosnier.

       5            JUDGE HOSEY:  Ms. Mosnier, you have about

       6   20 minutes.

       7            MS. MOSNIER:  Thank you.  I was just going to ask

       8   you for that number.  Okay.  Thank you.

       9   

      10                      FURTHER CLOSING ARGUMENT

      11            MS. MOSNIER:  Good afternoon.  Marguerite Mosnier

      12   for Franchise Tax Board.  And I will be addressing the

      13   issues of res judicata, interest abatement, and

      14   late-filing penalty.

      15            Turning first to the issue of res judicata.  It

      16   is Appellants' defense to the adjustments and the

      17   attendant penalty -- which are issues, I believe, 1, 2,

      18   and 4 set out in the prehearing conference minutes and

      19   orders.

      20            In other words, the Franchise Tax Board is bound

      21   by res judicata to follow the Tax Court judgement for the

      22   2006 tax year.  That position is unsubstantiated by the

      23   law.

      24            And before I talk about what res judicata is, I'd

      25   like to talk about what it isn't -- is not.
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       1            It is not, as Appellants assert, a conformity

       2   issue.  It's not entirely clear the context in which

       3   Appellants are using that term today.

       4            If they are using it in -- in the term that we

       5   often understand it as Franchise Tax Board, which is that

       6   we adopt as our own State tax laws specific Internal

       7   Revenue Code sections, we say that we have "adopted them

       8   by conformity."

       9            So there is that conformity.  And that is

      10   unrelated to the concept of res judicata.

      11            If the term "conformity" is used today to mean a

      12   resulting action by the Franchise Tax Board that flows

      13   from what's called a "final federal determination,"

      14   pursuant to Revenue and Taxation Code 18622, that is also

      15   not relevant to the concept of res judicata.

      16            And I will speak a little bit more about 18622

      17   later in my discussion about res judicata.

      18            So what is res judicata?

      19            It's an affirmative defense.  And the burden of

      20   proof to establish entitlement to that defense rests with

      21   the party who is asserting it.

      22            And in -- in OTA's February 4th, 2021 order

      23   regarding requests for subpoenas for documents and witness

      24   testimony, footnote 2, the OTA -- OTA noted the

      25   Appellants' assertion that it was their burden of proof on
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       1   this area.  And the OTA agreed with that.

       2            And as the OTA recited in Appeal -- its

       3   precedential opinion Appeal of Millennium Dental

       4   Technologies, a 2019 opinion, a party wishing to assert

       5   the affirmative defense of res judicata must establish the

       6   following four elements:

       7            First, that the parties in both actions are

       8   identical or in privity.  Second, that a court of

       9   competent jurisdiction must have rendered the first

      10   judgment.  Third, the prior action must have resulted in a

      11   judgment on the merits.  And fourth, the same cause of

      12   action or claim must be involved in both actions.

      13            With respect to the first element, obviously

      14   there's no identity.  There's no identity of parties

      15   because it was the Internal Revenue Service at the federal

      16   level, and it is Franchise Tax Board at the state level.

      17            There is also no privity between the IRS and the

      18   Franchise Tax Board.

      19            As FTB discussed in its opening brief, California

      20   Supreme Court defines "privity," or a "privy," as one who,

      21   after rendition of the judgment, has acquired an interest

      22   in the subject matter affected by the judgment through or

      23   under one of the parties as by inherent succession were

      24   purchased.

      25            So in other words, what we're talking about is
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       1   someone who, quote, "stands in the shoes of that first

       2   party."

       3            FTB does not have such an interest.  There is

       4   nothing in the record that indicates FTB had any influence

       5   on or directed the Internal Revenue Service's actions,

       6   either during its examination or subsequently during the

       7   Tax Court litigation, when the matter was conducted or

       8   overseen by the IRS Appeals Office.

       9            What there was was information sharing, which is

      10   authorized by agreement between the Internal Revenue

      11   Service and the Franchise Tax Board.

      12            And that is all it is.  It is a sharing of

      13   information.  It is -- it -- it vests no interest in

      14   either party -- in the outcome reached by the other party.

      15   And so there is no identity of parties, and there is no

      16   privity.

      17            With respect to the second element, Franchise Tax

      18   Board acknowledges that the U.S. Tax Court is a court of

      19   competent jurisdiction.  That element is not in dispute.

      20            And moving on to the third element, which is that

      21   there must have been, in the first action, a judgment on

      22   the merits.

      23            Here, it's instructive to look at the Appellants'

      24   Exhibit 10 to its opening brief -- to their opening brief

      25   and note the first, I think it's seven words of the
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       1   judgment, "pursuant to the agreement of the parties."

       2            This was not a matter in which the Tax Court

       3   considered the merits of either party's decision and

       4   applied relevant law to reach a judgment.  It was an

       5   acceptance of an agreement negotiated between the Internal

       6   Revenue Service and the Appellants.

       7            And as we have just heard Mr. Immordino explain,

       8   the Appeals Division of the IRS determined that it would

       9   settle for 33 percent -- allow 33 percent of the claimed

      10   deduction based strictly on hazards of litigation.

      11            That is not a judgment on the merits.  You can

      12   see that also if you look at the Tax Court docket -- it is

      13   one of the Plaintiff's additional exhibits -- one that we

      14   discussed at the beginning of the hearing today.

      15            There are very few entries on that docket.

      16   There's nothing on it -- nothing substantive between the

      17   filing of the action in Tax Court and the entry of the

      18   judgment.

      19            And that -- that confirms the fact that the Tax

      20   Court itself took no active role in the review of or

      21   disposition of the issues on appeal there.  So they have

      22   not established the third element either.

      23            They are equally -- they have failed equally to

      24   establish the fourth element -- that the same cause of

      25   action or claim must be involved in both actions.
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       1            Now, here, we have to take a step back and look

       2   at the procedural -- or not the procedural -- the factual

       3   difference between the taxpayer's position and their

       4   amended return filed with FTB in October of 2010 and the

       5   same amended return filed at the federal level at that

       6   time.

       7            The Franchise Tax Board processed and accepted

       8   the 540X -- the amended return that the Appellants

       9   filed -- the one in which they claimed the charitable

      10   contribution deduction, which was subsequently disallowed

      11   as shown on the Notice of Proposed Assessment.

      12            If, however, you look at the federal account

      13   transcript, that's Exhibit FF on page 2, you will see that

      14   in October of 2010, the Appellants did file an amended

      15   return and that the IRS disallowed that claim.

      16            In other words, there was never a charitable

      17   contribution deduction allowed at the federal level for

      18   the 2006 tax year.

      19            And a third way to -- to cross check that is look

      20   on the first page of the account transcript.  And you see

      21   that the federal AGI is the -- its around $4,200 -- it's

      22   the same amount listed on the 540X as the amount that was

      23   reported on the original 1040 -- on the original federal

      24   return.

      25            So there could not have been an adjudication or
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       1   an -- an issue of the -- the charitable contribution

       2   deduction between the IRS and the Appellants for the 2006

       3   tax year.  It was never allowed.  It was never -- it was

       4   not a part of the negotiated settlement.

       5            Likewise, with respect to the Section 731 gain

       6   issue, the record in this case is devoid of discussion or

       7   evidence that indicates the IRS considered the Section 31

       8   [sic] gain issue for this tax year.

       9            So there has not been symmetry or identity

      10   between the causes -- or causes of actions or claims that

      11   were resolved at the federal level and what is in dispute

      12   before you all today.

      13            Appellants have failed to establish elements --

      14   as I have them numbered here, one, three, and four -- for

      15   res judicata.  And it is not applicable in this case.

      16            And a finding that there was no res judicata is

      17   consistent with Board of Equalization precedential

      18   opinions starting with the Appeal of Der Wienerschnitzel

      19   in 1975 and followed by Appeal of Bertrand in 1985.  And

      20   the OTA adopts this view as well.

      21            In Millennium Dental Technologies, in footnote

      22   13, the OTA noted a plaintiff's objection -- a comment

      23   regarding an objection to a proposed penalty -- and noted

      24   that the IRS had not assessed a -- excuse me -- had not

      25   assessed a penalty.
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       1            The OTA went on to note that the FTB's assessment

       2   was proper in that case and that the Franchise Tax Board

       3   does not have to follow IRS actions and cited to Der

       4   Wienerschnitzel.

       5            Further, if you would look at the January 22,

       6   2020 orders re discovery that the OTA issued in this

       7   appeal and look at footnote 3, it is instructive:

       8            "Appellants have cited no authority for their

       9   claim that Franchise Tax Board is bound to accept the

      10   Internal Revenue Service's one-third concession (much less

      11   to treat it as a total concession as Appellants demand)

      12   and the law is clear to the contrary," with cites to

      13   Revenue and Taxation Code 18622(a) and to Appeal, I think

      14   it's Giselle 80-sbe-035.

      15            And then, finally, if we look at uncertainty as

      16   to how this IRS judgment would translate to the Franchise

      17   Tax Board.

      18            It is -- the uncertainty there is reason enough

      19   to disregard the idea that it could be a document that

      20   would govern the outcome of this appeal.

      21            Because there's no 731 issue or 2006 issue at the

      22   federal level -- there was no charitable contribution

      23   allowed -- how could you allow one-third of a proposed

      24   deduction that wasn't even part of that?

      25            And since there was no -- there could not be an

0066

       1   effect on the proposed adjustments or additional tax.  So

       2   the -- the Appellants have failed to establish that res

       3   judicata should be applied in this appeal with respect to

       4   the 2006 tax year.

       5            And when I said I would double back to 18622 on

       6   this topic, the conformity that FTB has -- and under

       7   18622(a), when FTB issues a proposed assessment that

       8   results from a federal action, it's presumed correct.  And

       9   the burden is on the taxpayer to prove that it's wrong.

      10            However, we know under Der Wienerschnitzel that

      11   neither the OTA nor the Franchise Tax Board is bound to

      12   follow the Internal Revenue Service.

      13            And this is not a federal action assessment.  It

      14   does not result from the work and the determination of the

      15   Internal Revenue Service.

      16            And I would just make a side note there that a

      17   final federal determination -- and when we talk about an

      18   IRS Determination -- it -- it does include a Tax Court

      19   judgment.

      20            1862(d) [sic] defines "final federal

      21   determination" as defined in 6203 of the Internal Revenue

      22   Code.  And then, if you go to the attendant regulation --

      23   and I believe it's Revenue Ruling 1-2007- -- I'm sorry.  I

      24   can't remember the last numbers -- the -- well,

      25   actually -- actually, that part probably isn't relevant
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       1   there.

       2            What it says is what's on the account transcript

       3   is evidence of the final federal determination.  And it's

       4   a point where there this is no longer any appeal or action

       5   that could be taken by the Appellants.  And so, of course,

       6   that would -- that would encompass the terms of the

       7   settlement.

       8            So to turn now to interest abatement, here,

       9   again, the Appellants have the burden of proof.

      10            And we know from the Office of Tax Appeals

      11   precedential opinion in Appeal of GEF Operating, Inc.,

      12   that to establish an abuse of discretion, the Appellants

      13   must show that in refusing to abate interest, that the

      14   Franchise Tax Board exercised its discretion arbitrarily,

      15   capriciously, or without sound basis in law and fact.

      16            And this, the Appellants have not done.  Although

      17   interest abatement is authorized in limited circumstances,

      18   Appellants haven't showed entitlement to it in this case.

      19            FTB diligently prosecuted the protest since it

      20   was filed.  It was filed towards the end of -- the protest

      21   filed towards the end of 2011.  And FTB wrote promptly in

      22   January of 2012 to say, "we have the appeal" -- or excuse

      23   me "the protest.  It's being assigned to the Protest

      24   Unit," and received a request then in response from

      25   Appellants asking to have the protest docketed.

0068

       1            So dual time got it docketed.  And then the first

       2   Protest Hearing Officer promptly issued a set of info --

       3   information and document request -- an IDR letter.

       4            And that was followed later in 2012 by a

       5   request -- a response from Appellants, asking to have that

       6   Protest Hearing Officer switched out for a -- a conflict

       7   of interest.

       8            And there's no -- there's no record in the file

       9   that indicates whether FTB made any decision on the

      10   merits, whether there was any actual conflict of interest.

      11   But -- or whether -- but to avoid the appearance of any,

      12   there was a second Protest Hearing Officer assigned to

      13   this case.

      14            And he, in early 2013, sent out IDRs and

      15   responded to the Appellants' request since the first

      16   January 2012 letter saying, "you know, we may need to put

      17   this on hold because the IRS is looking at these same --

      18   is looking at these same issues."

      19            And so while FTB then said, "Well, you know,

      20   there are some things, issues, perhaps we can go ahead on.

      21   Maybe there are others that will have to wait."  And the

      22   bottom line is that the Franchise Tax Board accommodated

      23   the Appellants' request to wait until there was a, quote,

      24   "final federal determination" before it finished its work

      25   on this protest.
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       1            And it didn't happen until July of 20- -- 2015.

       2   FTB was advised there had been a judgment.  And it took

       3   almost two years after that, waiting for IRS documents, to

       4   determine the extent to which that federal judgment would

       5   affect the outcome at the state level.

       6            And, specifically, in the July 16, 2015 letter

       7   from -- from the Appellants' Counsel -- or from their

       8   representative, they represented that both the charitable

       9   contribution deduction issue and the 731 issue were

      10   covered by that judgment.

      11            As it turned out, and as I said, it took FTB

      12   almost two years -- until 2017, to determine that it had

      13   all the federal documents and that there wasn't the

      14   overlap and, further, that, in any event, it was not

      15   required to follow what the IRS did.

      16            After that, the appeal -- the -- the protest

      17   hearing was held in May of 2018.  The notices of -- the

      18   notices of action were issued -- oh, I don't know -- a

      19   couple weeks after that.

      20            So throughout this -- throughout the entire time

      21   period of the protest, FTB worked with the Appellants to

      22   accommodate them and to keep working on the protest as --

      23   as possible.

      24            Finally, with respect to the Section 139

      25   late-filing penalty.  If you see on -- as you see it on
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       1   Exhibit EE, the Appellants 2006 California return was

       2   filed November 29, 2007.

       3            It was due April 15th.  So it was more than seven

       4   months late.  And the penalty was applied -- it's applied

       5   automatically under the law.

       6            Since the -- no return had been filed during the

       7   extension period -- there was no extension with respect to

       8   Appellant -- so the penalty was properly computed at the

       9   maximum 25 percent rate.

      10            The Appellants' assertion in their reply brief --

      11   the reason it was late is that the -- their tax -- the

      12   representative preparing the return had died is

      13   unsupported by any documentary evidence in record.

      14            There is nothing to show whether he was their

      15   representative; whether he was preparing the return for

      16   that year; when they learned that he would be unable to

      17   complete that return so that they could file it; and, if

      18   so, what steps they took to ensure that if he couldn't,

      19   that someone else could prepare it so that they could meet

      20   their filing obligation.

      21            And so for a failure of proof, they have not

      22   established that they -- that reasonable cause exists to

      23   abate that penalty.

      24            Thank you.

      25            Mr. Immordino and I -- this concludes our
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       1   argument.  And we're happy to address your questions.

       2   Thank you.

       3            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Thank you.

       4            I am going to check with the panel and see if

       5   they have any questions before we move forward with

       6   rebuttal.

       7            Judge Vassigh, do you have any questions?

       8            JUDGE VASSIGH:  I do not.  Thank you.

       9            JUDGE HOSEY:  Judge Le, do you have any

      10   questions?

      11            JUDGE LE:  No questions.  Thank you.

      12            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  I'm going to go ahead and

      13   deny the request for testimony since we have the

      14   documents.  And, well, it was a late request.  And we

      15   didn't have any questions regarding the factual

      16   circumstances.

      17            MR. HAMERSLEY:  I'm sorry.  What testimony would

      18   that be?

      19            JUDGE HOSEY:  Oh.  You just requested you

      20   would -- could be sworn in and testify yourself as to

      21   personal knowledge.  But I just don't think we need that

      22   at this time.

      23            MR. HAMERSLEY:  There's been factual -- material

      24   fact statements back and forth.

      25            JUDGE HOSEY:  Yeah.
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       1            MR. HAMERSLEY:  -- by both sides this entire

       2   time.

       3            JUDGE HOSEY:  I think we have --

       4            MR. HAMERSLEY:  But I -- but I am first -- I'm

       5   willing to go under oath.  And I have firsthand knowledge.

       6            JUDGE HOSEY:  Yeah.  We're not going to need that

       7   today.  But thank you.  I appreciate it.

       8            We will go ahead, though, with some rebuttal

       9   time, if you'd like some.

      10            Let me make sure I just have everything here.

      11            Yes.  You have time for some final statements, if

      12   you'd like to, Mr. Hamersley.

      13            MR. HAMERSLEY:  How long do I have?

      14            JUDGE HOSEY:  Go ahead.

      15            MR. HAMERSLEY:  How long do I have, Judge?

      16            JUDGE HOSEY:  Oh, yes.  You have 20 minutes.

      17   

      18                            REBUTTAL

      19            MR. HAMERSLEY:  Okay.  Well, that -- that's

      20   why this -- this protest took seven years.

      21            No matter what we say, no matter what evidence we

      22   put into the record, they keep -- they read a script.  And

      23   they just say no evidence -- we didn't prove -- they say

      24   the burden of proof is on us.

      25            Well, I've explained thoroughly why the burden of
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       1   proof shifts from the U.S. Tax Court decision.  18622, if

       2   you look at Wienerschnitzel, Giselle, McAfee -- those

       3   cases all deal with an IRS Audit Report.

       4            They're -- the -- the case law I gave you on the

       5   recent Ninth Circuit decision and the -- and the

       6   California Supreme decision cite well-settled law a

       7   stipulated court decision, and -- from a settlement

       8   agreement in litigation -- once you file a U.S. Tax Court

       9   petition, it's litigation.

      10            You're done with the IRS when the 90-day letter

      11   is issued.  They're -- now, you're -- they're -- now,

      12   they're their opposing party in litigation.

      13            So I can't even begin to say how wrong that was

      14   on the law on several points and how wrong on the facts.

      15            Adopt the law and those facts at your own peril.

      16   It's just flat wrong.  The documents show it.  I have

      17   testimony -- I have firsthand observed the -- the true

      18   facts.

      19            So 18622 is not accurate here.  There's never

      20   been a case where -- where -- I'm aware of where -- where

      21   the FTB refused to follow a U.S. Tax Court decision that

      22   was pending federal on the same taxpayer for the same year

      23   for the same transaction.

      24            On the issue of the zero dollars in the 2006.  It

      25   carried over to the subsequent years.  The -- those --
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       1   they -- they have no idea what they're reading in those

       2   documents.

       3            I negotiated that settlement.  All but $800,000

       4   of $9.577 million was allowed.  They took the benefit of

       5   that charitable contribution benefit deduction.

       6            Those are the facts.  They don't have any

       7   firsthand knowledge to the contrary.  They're reading

       8   stuff they don't understand.

       9            On res judicata, that law is not correct.

      10   There's no identity required.  Because -- I -- I read you

      11   the quote.  It's an identity or community of interest.

      12            That's the law.  And it's very broad.  And if you

      13   look at the case law of all of the facts that have been

      14   viewed to be -- have an identity or community of

      15   interest -- I told you, they said we didn't establish that

      16   there was an identity or -- identity of interest.

      17            Well, they follow the same law.  They could only

      18   have exchanged documents, which they did, if they had an

      19   identity or community interest in the -- in the MOA and

      20   the disclosure statutes.

      21            The -- they didn't just send documents and

      22   exchange it.  If you look at the -- if you look at the

      23   Exhibits AA and DD, they -- they talked often.  And

      24   Exhibit T, the smoking-gun letter that they wouldn't give

      25   us for five years, was the legal arguments on 731 and 170.
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       1            I was there.  The IRS laughed at the 81-242.

       2   Just like the chief -- former Chief Counsel who wrote the

       3   GCM, they don't think that's good law.

       4            And they say -- and the IRS, by the way, wasn't

       5   sharing anything with us.  We had to get that, ultimately,

       6   from the FTB -- from what they would disclose in their

       7   exhibits.  So we were in -- just as in the dark with the

       8   IRS.

       9            So why would there be anything -- the -- the

      10   analysis they're pointing to -- they keep saying that --

      11   that -- that Exhibit X, which was whited out -- so you

      12   compare the other redactions -- they're all blacked out in

      13   normal redaction mode -- look at the arguments made in the

      14   Responding's [sic] Opening Brief that refers to that

      15   Exhibit X.

      16            He's making the 67 percent argument there.  We

      17   didn't pay 67 percent.  It's flat wrong.  And if he had

      18   left those -- if he had left those paragraphs above and

      19   below in the line-item description, that argument would

      20   not hold.  It's contradicted by the information that was

      21   removed -- was whited out.

      22            Why would you white out information?  You said

      23   you were waiting on IRS approval -- that -- they had that

      24   those -- those letters for a long time.  Why did you put

      25   it in there at all?
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       1            And if you did, when you put it in, why didn't

       2   you redact it in normal fashion to let people know that

       3   there was something removed?

       4            So -- on -- on -- on the rest of the law, the

       5   81-242, I've already testified or argued how that works

       6   and -- and doesn't work.

       7            They just categorically do not understand the law

       8   or the facts.  And no matter what we say or what we

       9   write -- and that's why we've had to write volumes in this

      10   case, and we've had to spend inordinate amounts of time to

      11   try to get the rest of the documents, the rest of the past

      12   documents, the rest of the IRS documents that they just

      13   selectively chose to put little pieces in.

      14            If you look at Exhibits AA and DD, their own

      15   documents, you will also see that there's a reference in

      16   there that says the IRS -- the Tax Court decision --

      17   what -- after speaking with the IRS, was decided on the

      18   merits.

      19            It wasn't litigation hazards.  They had

      20   67 percent chance of winning -- is what it says in their

      21   memo.

      22            The reason they settled at 8.3 percent is because

      23   their appraisal was horrible.  It was from an IRS agent.

      24   And our appraisals were -- showed -- showed the value and

      25   supported it, and because their witness, as I said, in the
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       1   Palm Springs Unified School District switched their story

       2   and was completely unreliable.

       3            Their case, on the merits, was terrible.  And

       4   that's why it was settled at 8.3 percent.  67 percent is a

       5   fiction.  And it's the carryover, I guess -- that they

       6   don't understand how that works.

       7            Bottom line, $800,000 of $9.577 million was all

       8   that was disallowed.  That's 8.3 percent; it's not

       9   67 percent.

      10            So I don't know what to tell you.  Read the

      11   documents.  I'd love to give firsthand testimony under

      12   oath.  I'm not able to do that.

      13            I'd love to have other witnesses testify about

      14   81-242 -- what it means and what it doesn't.  You can read

      15   their own article.  It makes all the arguments that it's

      16   not good law.

      17            So they'll say that's not authority.  It sure as

      18   heck is a statement of the intent, interest, or -- or an

      19   admission that our position is well supported.

      20            So when you're looking at the weight of evidence,

      21   consider all those things.

      22            They said that we didn't submit any evidence that

      23   the CPA had died.  I submitted his obituary that

      24   referenced that he had a long-term illness.

      25            There was no dialogue.  When you don't have
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       1   communication with a taxpayer for seven years -- and you

       2   can see from the -- the -- the -- all of the emails that I

       3   put in -- that's it over seven years.

       4            When you don't have communications and you hide

       5   your actions in -- in -- in violating 2006-6 and

       6   transparency policies that this -- this OTA is under as

       7   well -- when you hire -- it's going to take a long time,

       8   and you're not going to get it right.

       9            If you would talk to the taxpayer and -- and you

      10   would listen and you wouldn't keep repeating the same

      11   script no matter what they say or what they give you, then

      12   we wouldn't -- it wouldn't have taken seven years.

      13            It took two years with the IRS because, finally,

      14   we got to a point where they realized the appraisals were

      15   bad.  That the IRS appraisers -- appraisal was bad from

      16   Mr. Power, the IRS employee -- and that their witness on

      17   all those statements that were reiterated here, were not

      18   reliable or accurate.

      19            So -- the credibility and the weight of evidence

      20   matters.  Narratives are just that.  They're useless

      21   statements unless they're supported by documents.

      22            And they're -- they're citing documents to say

      23   they're supported.  I'm trying to tell you that's not what

      24   those documents say.  And my -- my -- my testimony can

      25   enlighten that because I was there.  And I'm the one who
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       1   negotiated several of those documents.

       2            That's all we have to say.

       3            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Thank you.

       4            I'm just going to check with my panel again to

       5   see if there's any questions before we submit the case.

       6            Judge Vassigh, do you have any questions?

       7            JUDGE VASSIGH:  I do not.

       8            JUDGE HOSEY:  Judge Le, any other questions?

       9            JUDGE LE:  No questions.  Thank you.

      10            JUDGE HOSEY:  Okay.  Then we are ready to submit

      11   the case today.  The record is now closed.

      12            This concludes our hearing.  And the panel will

      13   meet and decide the case based on the exhibits and

      14   arguments presented.  We will aim to send both parties our

      15   written decision no later than 100 days from today.

      16            Thank you all for your participation.  The

      17   hearing is now adjourned.  Thank you.

      18            (Proceedings concluded at 3:58 p.m.)
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